
 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF PICTURE BUTTE TOWN COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
Monday, 13th of February, 2023 at 6:30 pm 

 
1.0  CALL TO ORDER 

 
2.0  ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
3.0  ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 

 
3.1  Regular Council Meeting Minutes – 23rd January, 2023 

 
4.0 PUBLIC HEARING  
 
 
5.0 DELEGATION 
 

5.1 Closed Session FOIP Act Division 2 Section 16 – Union Grievance 
5.2 S/Sgt Mike Numan  
 
            

6.0 REQUESTS FOR DECISION 
 

6.1 Bylaw No. 932-23 Land Use Bylaw No. 841-15 Amendment – Land Use 
Redesignation – 1st Reading 

6.2 The Green and Inclusive Community Buildings Program 
6.3 Town of Picture Butte 100 year Centennial  
6.4 Committee of the Whole meeting time 
6.5 Sunset Park Phase 2 Engineered Drawings 
6.6 Alberta Coordinated Action for Recycling Enterprises Conference 

Attendance 
6.7  

 
7.0 MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
8.0 COUNCIL’S REPORT 
 
9.0 ADMINISTRATION’S REPORT 
 

9.1 CAO Report 
9.1.1 Director of Operations Report 

 



10.0 CORRESPONDENCE 
 
10.1 AB Municipalities Elected Officials Training – Asset Management 
10.2 Barons-Eureka-Warner FCSS – All Council Meeting Invitation 

 
11.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
11.1 Barons-Eureka-Warner FCSS Board Meeting Minutes – December 2022 
11.2 Town of Fox Creek – Ambulance Services 
11.3 AHS Interim President – 811 
11.4 Chamber of Commerce – Piyami Lodge  
11.5 Southern Alberta Energy from Waste Association – Media Release 
11.6 Town of Smoky Lake - Letter of Support for Denied Application for Camrose 

Casino Relocation 
 

12.0 CLOSED SESSION  
 
12.1 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 16 – Union Grievance 

 
13.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 23rd, 2023                        1               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

MINUTES 
OF THE 

PICTURE BUTTE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
HELD IN 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
Monday, January 23rd, 2023 AT 6:30 PM 

 
PRESENT:  Mayor C. Moore         Deputy Mayor H. de Kok        Councillor C. Papworth 

Councillor T. Feist     Councillor S. Thomson 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Chief Administrative Officer – K. Davis 

Director of Corporate Services – M. Overbeeke 
Administrative Assistant – C. Johnson 

 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Moore the Regular Council Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

2.0 ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

003 2301 23  MOVED by Councillor Feist that the agenda be approved as presented. 
          CARRIED 
 
 

3.0 ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES 
 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting – December 19th, 2022 
 

004 2301 23  MOVED by Deputy Mayor de Kok that the Regular Council Meeting minutes 
of December 19th, 2022 be approved as presented. 

          CARRIED 
           

4.0 PUBLIC HEARING  
 

Administration spoke to the proposed Bylaw No. 931-22 Land Use Bylaw 
No. 841-15 Amendment – Temporary Shipping Containers. 
 
4.1 Submissions 

4.1.1 In Person Submissions 
4.1.1.1 Ask for Those in Favour 

 
There was no one was present to speak in favour of the 
proposed bylaw.  
 
4.1.1.2 Ask for Those Opposed 

 
There was no one was present to speak in opposition of the 
proposed bylaw. 
 

4.1.2 Written Submissions 
4.1.2.1 Ask for Those in Favour 

 
There were no written submissions in support of the proposed 
bylaw. 
 
4.1.2.2 Ask for Those Opposed 

 
There were no written submissions opposed to the proposed 
bylaw. 

 
4.2 Adjourn Public Hearing 

 
Mayor Moore adjourned the public hearing at 6:32 p.m. 
 

 
5.0 DELEGATION – None for this meeting 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 23rd, 2023                        2               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

6.0 REQUESTS FOR DECISION  
 

6.1 Bylaw No. 931-22 Land Use Bylaw No. 841-15 Amendment – 
Temporary Shipping Containers 

  
005 2301 23 MOVED by Deputy Mayor de Kok to approve the second reading of Bylaw 

No. 931-22 Land Use Bylaw No. 841-15 Amendment – Temporary Shipping 
Containers. 

          CARRIED 
 
006 2301 23 MOVED by Councillor Thomson to approve the third and final reading of 

Bylaw No. 931-22 Land Use Bylaw No. 841-15 Amendment – Temporary 
Shipping Containers. 

          CARRIED 
          

7.0 MAYOR’S REPORT  
 

7.1 Mayor’s Report 
 

Mayor Moore advised Council on her recent activities: 
   January 6 Attended a Mayors and Reeves meeting 
   January 16 Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting  
   January 23 Attended a Community Futures A/R Committee meeting 

 
007 2301 23   MOVED by Mayor Moore that the Mayor’s Report be accepted as presented. 

           CARRIED 
 

8.0 COUNCIL’S REPORT 
 

8.1 Council’s Report 
 
Deputy Mayor de Kok advised Council of his recent activities: 
January 16  Attended a Committee of Whole meeting 
 
Councillor Feist advised Council of her recent activities: 
January 16  Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 

 
Councillor Papworth advised Council of her recent activities: 
December 21 Attended the Blackrock Terrace Green Acres Christmas 

Dinner 
January 5 Attended a Remembrance Day Committee meeting 
January 12 Attended a Picture Butte & District Chamber of 

Commerce meeting 
January 16 Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 

  
 Councillor Thomson advised Council of his recent activities:  
 January 16  Attended a Committee of the Whole meeting 
 January 19  Attended the PrairiesCan News Conference 
  

008 2301 23 MOVED by Councillor Papworth that the Council Reports be accepted as 
presented. 
                          CARRIED 

 
009 2301 23 MOVED by Councillor Papworth to allow Councillor Thomson to attend the 

PrairiesCan News Conference on January 19th, 2023 and to allow Mayor 
Moore to attend the Indigenous Ceremony/Treaty 7 Acknowledgment at the 
Coaldale RCMP detachment on January 24th, 2023. 

          CARRIED 
 

9.0 ADMINISTRATION’S REPORT  
 

9.1 CAO Report 
 

010 2301 23  MOVED by Deputy Mayor de Kok to accept the CAO Report as presented. 
           CARRIED 

 
 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 23rd, 2023                        3               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

9.1.1 Director of Emergency Services Report 
 

011 2301 23 MOVED by Councillor Papworth to accept the Director of Emergency 
Services Report as presented. 

           CARRIED 
 

10.0 CORRESPONDENCE  
 

10.1 Picture Butte & District Chamber of Commerce - Best of Butte 
Awards Sponsorship Request 

 
012 2301 23 MOVED by Deputy Mayor de Kok to purchase a silver sponsorship to the 

Picture Butte & District Chamber of Commerce Best of Butte Awards.  
         CARRIED 
 
013 2301 23 MOVED by Mayor Moore to give the sponsorship dinner ticket to the Best of 

Butte Awards to Councillor Papworth.  
         CARRIED 
 

10.2 Prairies Economic Development Canada – Invitation  
 

 014 2301 23 MOVED by Councillor Thomson to receive and file Correspondence 10.2 
Prairies Economic Development Canada – Invitation.  

           CARRIED 
 

10.3 Village of Barons – New Chief Administrative Officer 
 

015 2301 23 MOVED by Deputy Mayor de Kok to receive and file Correspondence 10.3 
Village of Barons – New Chief Administrative Officer. 

           CARRIED 
 

11.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 

11.1 Picture Butte & District Chamber of Commerce – November 10, 2022 
Meeting Minutes 

11.2 Picture Butte & District Chamber of Commerce – Society Bylaws 
11.3 Letter to Minister Copping – Alberta Ambulance Service  
11.4 Oldman River Regional Services Commission - Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes – January 12, 2023 
11.5 Alberta Health – Healthcare Improvement Update – December, 2022 
11.6 Oldman River Regional Services Commission – Regular Meeting 

Minutes – December, 2022 
11.7 Alberta Health Services Interim President and CEO – Update 
11.8 Chinook Arch Regional Library System – Board Report – December, 

2022 
11.9 Assessment Review Board Decision – December, 2022 

 
016 2301 23 MOVED by Councillor Feist to receive and file Informational Item 11.1 – 

11.9. 
         CARRIED 
 

12.0 CLOSED SESSION  
 

12.1 FOIP Act Division 2 Section 19 – Water & Wastewater Operator 
Wages  

 
017 2301 23  MOVED by Councillor Thomson to close the meeting in accordance with 

Division 2 Section 19 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of 
Privacy Act to discuss Water & Wastewater Operator Wages at 6:53 p.m. 

          CARRIED 
   
  C. Johnson left the meeting at 6:53 p.m. 

 
018 2301 23   MOVED by Councillor Papworth to open the meeting to the public at 7:21 

p.m. 
          CARRIED  

 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
January 23rd, 2023                        4               Mayor _______    CAO______ 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next Regular Council Meeting is scheduled for February 13th, 2023 
beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
 

019 2301 23 MOVED by Councillor Thomson that the Regular Council Meeting adjourn at 
7:21p.m. 

         CARRIED 
 
 

   
 
             
Mayor Moore       Keith Davis 
        Chief Administrative Officer 
 



I, 

2023-01-30 

S/Sgt. Mike Numan 

Detachment Commander 

Coaldale-Picture Butte 

Dear Mayor Moore, 

Please find attached the quarterly Community Policing Report that serves to provide a quarterly 

snapshot of the human resources, financial data and crime statistics for the Picture Butte 

Detachment spanning the October 1st to December 3l5t, 2022 reporting period. This report is a 

key tool to address any questions or concerns you may have, as part of our continued 

commitment to engage with your leadership team and the constituents you represent. 

As we embark on 2023, the top priority for the Alberta RCMP remains the safety and security of 

all Albertans. Thus, this letter and attached appendixes will provide for you an update on our 

Next Generation 9-1-1 (NG911) upgrades in our Operational Communications Centers (OCC). 

The Alberta RCMP OCC Program provides response to police emergencies and routine calls for 

service to approximately 1.3 million citizens of Alberta, including 22 First Nations communities. 

The OCC provides police dispatch and call-taking services supporting 117 RCMP detachments 

and several contracted and/or integrated units. Our call-taking services also serve as a 

Secondary Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) for Alberta's 9-1-1 system. 

The Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission (CRTC) has mandated the 

replacement of the current Enhanced 9-1-1 service in Canada with NG911. This change will 

enhance public safety communications in an increasingly wireless society and will 

fundamentally change 9-1-1 and emergency services operations as it exists today. The 

evolution of NG911 future improvements are anticipated to include: 

• 9-1-1 Real-time Text (RTT) by Spring 2024. 

• Further location improvements including the potential addition of azimuth to enhance 

coordinates, vehicle telematics, and building schematics. 

• The potential to communicate with 911 operators via video call. 

As early adopters of this transition to NG911, the Alberta RCMP's lead in modernizing public 

safety communications demonstrates our commitment to the safety and security of all 

Albertans. 

1 of 2 



As a further update, we are also getting the process underway for multi-year financial plans for 

MPSA and PPSA contracts. If you are policed under a MPSA, I will be working directly with you 

to craft the multi-year financial plan for your community. If you are policed under the Provincial 

Police Service (communities under 5,000), the Alberta RCMP will be working directly with the 

Province of Alberta to develop the multi-year financial plan. 

The attached reporting along with your valued feedback will help ensure we are meeting your 

community needs on an ongoing basis. As the Chief of Police for your community, please do not 

hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

S/Sgt. Mike Numan 

Detachment Commander 

Coaldale-Picture Butte 

2 of 2 













CATEGORY Trend 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
% Change 

2018 ‐ 2022

% Change 

2021 ‐ 2022

Avg File +/‐ 

per Year

     Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Sexual Assaults 4 0 3 2 2 ‐50% 0% ‐0.2

     Other Sexual Offences 5 1 0 2 0 ‐100% ‐100% ‐0.9

     Assault 9 11 8 10 9 0% ‐10% ‐0.1

     Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Criminal Harassment 3 3 5 3 0 ‐100% ‐100% ‐0.6

     Uttering Threats 4 5 2 4 0 ‐100% ‐100% ‐0.9

TOTAL PERSONS 25 20 18 21 11 ‐56% ‐48% ‐2.7

     Break & Enter 9 2 2 8 5 ‐44% ‐38% ‐0.2

     Theft of Motor Vehicle 6 4 3 2 4 ‐33% 100% ‐0.6

     Theft Over $5,000 4 2 2 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐1.0

     Theft Under $5,000 14 8 11 3 6 ‐57% 100% ‐2.1

     Possn Stn Goods 1 1 2 2 2 100% 0% 0.3

     Fraud 8 10 9 5 2 ‐75% ‐60% ‐1.7

     Arson 0 0 0 1 0 N/A ‐100% 0.1

     Mischief ‐ Damage To Property 0 11 6 9 5 N/A ‐44% 0.8

     Mischief ‐ Other 8 0 1 2 1 ‐88% ‐50% ‐1.2

TOTAL PROPERTY 50 38 36 32 25 ‐50% ‐22% ‐5.6

     Offensive Weapons 0 1 2 1 1 N/A 0% 0.2

     Disturbing the peace 3 1 5 4 1 ‐67% ‐75% ‐0.1

     Fail to Comply & Breaches 6 1 5 4 8 33% 100% 0.7

     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 5 1 3 0 3 ‐40% N/A ‐0.5

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 14 4 15 9 13 ‐7% 44% 0.3

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 89 62 69 62 49 ‐45% ‐21% ‐8.0

Picture Butte Provincial Detachment

Crime Statistics (Actual)

January 5, 2023

Q3 (Oct ‐ Dec): 2018 ‐ 2022
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"



CATEGORY Trend 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
% Change 

2018 ‐ 2022

% Change 

2021 ‐ 2022

Avg File +/‐ 

per Year

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Possession 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Trafficking 1 0 0 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.2

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Other 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Total Drugs 1 0 0 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.2

     Cannabis Enforcement 1 0 0 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.2

     Federal ‐ General 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

TOTAL FEDERAL 2 0 0 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.4

     Liquor Act 1 2 0 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.4

     Cannabis Act 0 1 0 0 0 N/A N/A ‐0.1

     Mental Health Act 8 4 5 15 7 ‐13% ‐53% 0.9

     Other Provincial Stats 17 16 25 26 13 ‐24% ‐50% 0.2

Total Provincial Stats 26 23 30 41 20 ‐23% ‐51% 0.6

     Municipal By‐laws Traffic 0 1 0 0 0 N/A N/A ‐0.1

     Municipal By‐laws 2 6 4 0 2 0% N/A ‐0.6

Total Municipal 2 7 4 0 2 0% N/A ‐0.7

     Fatals 1 0 1 0 0 ‐100% N/A ‐0.2

     Injury MVC 5 3 1 4 5 0% 25% 0.1

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 31 45 40 24 28 ‐10% 17% ‐2.7

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 5 2 6 4 0 ‐100% ‐100% ‐0.8

TOTAL MVC 42 50 48 32 33 ‐21% 3% ‐3.6

     Roadside Suspension ‐ Alcohol (Prov) N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A

     Roadside Suspension ‐ Drugs (Prov) N/A N/A N/A N/A 0 N/A N/A N/A

Total Provincial Traffic 150 429 285 232 51 ‐66% ‐78% ‐39.5

Other Traffic 1 4 0 1 1 0% 0% ‐0.3

Criminal Code Traffic 8 13 3 2 1 ‐88% ‐50% ‐2.5

Common Police Activities

     False Alarms 9 4 5 5 9 0% 80% 0.1

     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 10 20 22 17 13 30% ‐24% 0.3

     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 9 14 15 9 5 ‐44% ‐44% ‐1.3

     Persons Reported Missing 3 2 2 0 2 ‐33% N/A ‐0.4

     Search Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Spousal Abuse ‐ Survey Code (Reported) 11 9 12 6 9 ‐18% 50% ‐0.7

     Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Picture Butte Provincial Detachment

Crime Statistics (Actual)

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" January 5, 2023

Q3 (Oct ‐ Dec): 2018 ‐ 2022



 
Alberta RCMP OCC Program  

 

RCMP Emergency 9-1-1  
  

Alberta RCMP Operational Communications Centre  Page 1 of 2 
 

 

A. Who we are…. 

The Alberta RCMP has two 9-1-1 call taking centres located in Edmonton and Red Deer.  Each 
centre employs 75 highly trained 9-1-1 call taker / dispatchers, responding to police emergency 
and routine calls.  Employees working in RCMP Emergency Communications has successfully 
completed a mandatory national certification program consisting of 320 hours of facilitator led 
classroom and another 700 hours of on-the-job training with a Field Coach. 
 

B. What we do…. 

The RCMP Provincial Operational Communications Centres (OCC) are the secondary answering 
point for approximately 1.3 million Albertans, and dispatching 117 RCMP detachments/units. 
 
In 2021, we received and processed 236,669 9-1-1 and 361,271 complaint (routine/non-
emergency) calls, which equates to about 1,600 calls per day.  Approximately 60% of these calls 
will result in the creation of a police file which will be dispatched to a front-line police officer. 
 
Call takers are tasked with asking numerous questions to ensure an appropriate response.  
These questions will focus on your/the incident location (exact address expedites the process), 
what is occurring and who is involved.  You can expect questions regarding weapons, alcohol 
and drugs, to ensure everyone’s safety.  And don’t worry, often while we are continuing to ask 
questions, we have already dispatched a police officer who is enroute.  

 
C. How it happens…. 

When you call 9-1-1, you can expect the first response to be “9-1-1 what is your emergency?”, 
followed by “what is your exact location?”.  At this point dependant upon your response, you 
may be transferred to the correct emergency service provider (i.e. Police, Fire or Ambulance).  
You will then be asked a 2nd time for your exact location.  The more specific you are, will 
expedite our ability to generate a file for dispatch. 
 
The call taker is generating an electronic file ….. 
 

D. How you can help…. 

1. Know your location.  A specific address is always best. 
 

2. Be patient and respond to the questions asked.  There is no delay in emergency service 
response but we must ensure the most appropriate personnel, equipment are enroute to 
you and make sure everyone is safe. 
 



 
Alberta RCMP OCC Program  

 

RCMP Emergency 9-1-1  
  

Alberta RCMP Operational Communications Centre  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
E. What’s next…. 

The Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunication Commission (CRTC) is the Government 
of Canada body that regulates telephone and cellular service companies.  These companies 
create networks that make it possible to connect 9-1-1 calls to call centres.  These centres then 
dispatch emergency responders, such as police, firefighters and paramedics. 
 
On March 7, 2019, the CRTC directed that all telecommunication service providers and 
incumbent local exchange carriers (phone, cable & wireless services) must evolve their current 
networks to provide Internet Protocol-based capabilities by 2025.  The new and improved 
platform is known as Next Generation 9-1-1 or NG9-1-1. 
 
NG9-1-1 networks and services will allow Canadians access to new, improved and innovative 
emergency services.  The design and related interconnection arrangement of NG9-1-1 networks 
are secure, reliable, resilient and cost-effective for stakeholders. 

 
F. How will NG9-1-1 changes impact me…. 

The Next Generation 9-1-1 network and related communications technology will provide 
emergency service providers with new opportunities to keep the public and field responders 
safer, while also giving 9-1-1 Emergency Dispatch Centres tools to make them more effective 
and efficient within their communities. 
 
Some of the improvements that will assist in providing improved and safer service delivery will 
include, better location accuracy (three-dimensional mapping showing which floor of a high rise 
etc.); improved crash data (vehicle telematics etc.); real-time video and picture sharing; text 
with 9-1-1 for the deaf and hard of hearing community; new services such as language 
assistance/translation services; downlinks to smartphone applications (i.e. medical records 
etc.); and improved coordinated responses and information sharing amongst emergency 
service providers. 

 
G. To find out more…. 

 
To find out more about Next Generation 9-1-1, you can visit the CRTC website. 
 
To find out more about RCMP 9-1-1 Call Taking/Dispatch jobs, please visit our website. 
 

https://crtc.gc.ca/eng/phone/911/gen.htm
https://www.rcmp-grc.gc.ca/en/telecommunications-operators-9-1-1-dispatcher#a6




 
Request for Decision 

 

 
Date: 7 February, 2023 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re:  Bylaw No. 932-23 Land Use Bylaw No. 841-15 Amendment – Land Use Redesignation 
 
 
Background: 
The Town has received an application for a land use bylaw amendment to redesignate (rezone) 643 
Crescent Avenue from Residential R-1 to Residential Multi Unit – R5. 
 
The process for a land use bylaw amendment to redesignate land is: 

1. Council considers if the application and bylaw can receive first reading. 
2. A public hearing has to occur 
3. The public hearing is advertised for two weeks whereupon individuals may submit feedback 

regarding the application. 
4. Council considers all of the information and must make a decision regarding the application and 

should consider the following when making the decision: 
a. Compliance with applicable standards and provisions of the Land Use Bylaw; 
b. Consistency with any adopted statutory plans; 
c. Compatibility with adjacent users; 
d. Development potential/suitability of the site; 
e. Availability of facilities and services and potential impacts to levels of service to existing 

development; 
f. Potential impacts on local roads; 
g. Setback distances contained in Subdivision and Development Regulation; 
h. Supply of suitably designated land; 
i. Public comment and any applicable review agency comments; and  
j. Any other matters deemed pertinent. 

 
For the consideration of 1st reading Administration will comment on the criteria that Council should be 
considering when deciding upon a land use bylaw amendment application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



1. Compliance with applicable standards and provisions of the Land Use Bylaw (R5) 
• The application is generally in compliance with the provisions of the Land Use Bylaw as 

detailed in the following table. 
i. The height and off site parking requirements can be worked out at the development 

permit stage of the application. 
 

Land Use Bylaw Requirement Application Meets Min. Requirement 
Lot Size 6,000 sq. ft. 9865.87 sq. ft. Yes 
Lot Width 60 ft.  60 ft.  Yes 
Lot Length 100 ft. 125 ft.  Yes 
Front Set Back 25 ft. 25ft. Yes 
Side Set Back 5 ft.  5 ft.  Yes 
Rear Set Back  25 ft.  60 ft.  Yes 
Max Site Coverage 50% 41% (Principle + Accessory) Yes 
Floor Area 800 sq. ft. per 

unit 
1,385 sq. ft. per unit  Yes 

Max Height 33 ft.  Not specified No 
Off Site Parking 2 per unit (8 

Total) 
7  No 

 
2. Consistency with any adopted statutory plans 

• The application does not go against any of our adopted statutory plans. 
3. Compatibility with adjacent users 

• Adjacent lands are zoned Residential – R-1. Although in this block, including one of the 
adjacent neighbours, are a number of semi-detached dwellings on Crescent Avenue 
including 645, 647, 649 and 651 Crescent.  

• There is one Residential Multi Unit – R5 property on Crescent Avenue located at 140 
Crescent Avenue.   

4. Development potential/suitability of the site 
• This site should be suitable for the proposed development. 

5. Availability of facilities and services 
• Services are available at the site. Upgrades would need to occur. This would be established 

in a development agreement. 
6. Potential impacts on local roads. 

• Crescent Avenue is a main road in Town. I do not think this development will have a 
significant impact on the traffic of Crescent Avenue. 

7. Setbacks distances. 
• Application meets setback requirements. 

8. Supply of suitably designated land. 
• There is no land currently dedicated to Residential Multi-Unit – R5 in Town. 

9. Public comment and any applicable review agency comments 
• To be added if first reading proceeds. 

10. Any other matters deemed pertinent. 
 
Council is not deciding on the development proposal, only the redesignation of lands from Residential – 
R1 to Residential Multi-Unit R5 however the development proposal has to be considered to make the 
decision to rezone the lands.  
 
If this redesignation of lands proceeds a development permit for the multi-unit dwelling must be applied 
for. A servicing agreement/development agreement will also have to be entered into for the provision of 
services to the proposed Residential Multi-Unit dwelling. 
 



Recommendation: 
For Council to conduct 1st reading of Bylaw No. 932-23 Land Use Bylaw Amendment – Land Use 
Redesignation. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Bylaw No. 932-23 
2. Land Use Bylaw Amendment Application 
3. Sunnysouth advertisement for Public Hearing 

 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO  



TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE 
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

BYLAW NO.  932-23 
 
 
 
BEING a bylaw of the Town of Picture Butte in the Province of Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 841-15, being 
the municipal Land Use Bylaw. 
 
WHEREAS the purpose of the proposed amendment is to redesignate land legally described as:  
Lot 21, Block 5, Plan 1141FM, (643 Crescent Ave) from ‘Residential – R1’ to ‘Residential Multi-unit – R5’, 
as shown on the map in Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto to accommodate the development of a multi-unit 
rowhouse residential building; 
 
AND WHEREAS a Public Hearing, as required by Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, will be 
held prior to second reading of this Bylaw;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, under the authority and subject to the provisions of the Municipal Government Act, 
Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter M-26, as amended, the Council of the Town of Picture Butte, 
in the Province of Alberta, duly assembled does hereby enact the following: 
 
1. The land described as Lot 21, Block 5, Plan 1141FM as shown on the attached Schedule ‘A’ be 

designated as Residential Multi-unit – R5. 
 

2. That the Land Use Districts map of the Town of Picture Butte Land Use Bylaw No. 841-15 be 
amended to reflect this designation. 
 

3. Bylaw No. 841-15 being the Land Use Bylaw is hereby amended. 
 

4. Final formatting and consolidation shall take place following the passage of the bylaw.  
 

5. This bylaw comes into effect upon third and final reading hereof. 
 
 
READ a first time this _____day of _____________, 2023. 
 
 
 ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
 Mayor – Cathy Moore  Chief Administrative Officer – Keith Davis  
 

READ a second time this  _______ day of ____________, 2023. 
 
 
 ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
Mayor – Cathy Moore  Chief Administrative Officer – Keith Davis  
 

READ a third time and finally passed this  _______ day of ____________, 2023. 
 
 
 ___________________________________   ____________________________________  
 Mayor – Cathy Moore  Chief Administrative Officer – Keith Davis  
 























NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE

IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
PROPOSED BYLAW No. 932 - 23

To be held at 6:30 p.m., February 27th, 2023
Town Of Picture Butte Council Chambers

Pursuant to the Municipal Government Act the Council of the Town of 
Picture Butte hereby gives notice of its intention to consider Bylaw No. 
932 - 23, being an amendment to Land Use Bylaw No. 841-15.

The Council of the Town of Picture Butte has been requested to 
redesignate (rezone) a parcel of land located at 643 Crescent Avenue 
North and legally described as Lot 21, Block 5, Plan 1141FM, from 
“Residential – R1” to “Residential Multi-unit – R5” as shown below.

The purpose of the proposal is to accommodate the development of a 
four-unit rowhouse type dwelling as part of a multi-unit building to provide 
diversity of housing in Picture Butte.

How to Submit Comments 
If you would like to submit comments or require further information on 
this proposed bylaw please email keith@picturebutte.ca or 
call 403-732-4555, during normal business hours. 
Please forward written submissions on or before February 23rd
at 4:00 PM. 
How to Attend or View the Public Hearing 
A public hearing to consider the proposed Bylaw will be held
in person in Council Chambers at the Town office 6:30 p.m.
on February 27th, 2023. 
If you would like to speak at the public hearing or listen in,
please contact Keith Davis at keith@picturebutte.ca by 4:00 p.m.
on February 27th, 2023.

DATED at the Town of Picture Butte in the province of Alberta this 
31st day of January 2023.

Keith Davis
Chief Administrative Officer



 
Request for Decision 

 

 
Date: 6 February, 2023 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re:  Green and Inclusive Community Buildings Program 
 
 
Background: 
The Government of Canada has dedicated $1.5 billion in federal funding over five years. The program 
was announced in December 2020. I believe the first round of intakes occurred in 2021. The funding 
program is accepting applications until the 28th of February, 2023. The program supports retrofits, repairs 
or upgrades of existing publicly accessible community buildings and the construction of new publicly 
accessible community buildings.  Funding for retrofits up to $10,000,000 will be funded 80%.  
I believe this is the second intake and costs that are incurred up to 31st of March, 2026 are eligible.  
 
The grant application requires specifics that the Town does not currently have and we are therefore 
unable to put in a grant application at this time. I have emailed the grant administrators and they have not 
confirmed whether there will be another intake next year.  
 
However, I believe the Town should prepare for, if not another intake of this program, but any other grant 
that becomes available for a recreational facility such as the arena. In my experience these funding 
programs habitually get offered for recreational facilities. Without a plan we will never be prepared to 
apply for funding like the funding available now. 
 
We would like Council to consider dedicating $150,000 to an engineering or architectural study that will 
give the Town an upgrade plan for the North County Recreation Complex. We would like to engage this 
professional in 2023 and to be completed by the end of the year so that if there is another intake for the 
federal funding, we will be prepared to submit an application.  
 
The risk is that we may not be successful in the grant application and not have the engineering study 
covered by a grant. However, if we do not have a plan it is highly unlikely we will get future grants.  
 
Recommendation: 
Direct Administration to propose a funding proposal that can be included in the 2023 budget for an 
engineering or architectural study for a renovation to the North and County Recreation Complex. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Green and Inclusive Community Buildings – Applicant Guide 
 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO  

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



�������������������
������������������
���������������
����������������������
	





 
 

2 
 

What is the objective of the Green and Inclusive Community Buildings 

Program?  
 

The Green and Inclusive Community Buildings (GICB) Program is a national merit-based program 

with the objective of improving the availability and condition of community buildings in Canadian 

communities experiencing higher needs and who are currently underserved. At the same time, 

the Program helps to stimulate the economy while creating good job opportunities and aligning to 

the goals of Canada’s strengthened climate plan.  

 

The Program advances the Government’s climate priorities by improving energy efficiency, 

reducing GHG emissions, and enhancing the climate resilience of community buildings.  

 

 

How does the Program work?  

The Government of Canada announced up to $1.5 billion in federal funding over five years to 

establish the GICB Program. The Program support retrofits, repairs or upgrades of existing 

publicly-accessible community buildings and the construction of new publicly-accessible 

community buildings that serve underserved and high-needs communities across Canada.  

 

Community buildings are non-commercial community-oriented structures and spaces that provide 

open, available, and accessible community services to the public. With this Program, the 

Government of Canada is making investments to improve the availability and condition of 

community buildings – in particular in areas with populations experiencing higher needs – while 

also making the buildings more energy efficient, lower carbon, resilient, and high performing.  

 

The Program focuses on publicly accessible community buildings with a recognition that these 

structures and spaces are at the heart of community vitality: they are the places where Canadians 

gather, access essential services, and learn and play. The quality, availability and location of 

these spaces – along with the services that they sustain – play a meaningful role in fostering 

inclusion in society and combating systemic inequities.  

 

 

How does this Program fit in with Canada’s fight against climate change?  

The GICB Program is part of Canada’s strengthened climate plan, which was introduced in 

December 2020 as the Healthy Environment and a Healthy Economy. The Program supports the 

first pillar of the plan by improving the places where Canadians live and gather – which will cut 

pollution, make life more affordable and create thousands of jobs in construction.  

 

Funding through this Program will build and adapt community buildings to reduce carbon 

emissions, advance best practices to implement GHG mitigation measures, foster awareness and 

alignment to green building standards nationally and internationally, and encourage best practices 

in building design for climate change resilience. Investments in the repair and construction of 

community buildings will generate employment and community development opportunities, 

helping communities to recover from the economic impacts of COVID-19. 

  



  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

3 
 

Who can apply to the GICB Program? 

Funding under the GICB Program is provided directly by Infrastructure Canada to recipients at 

the local community level.  

 

Eligible applicants include: 

• A municipal or regional government established by or under provincial or territorial 

statute 

• A provincial or territorial government 

• A public sector body that is established by or under provincial or territorial statute or 

by regulation or is wholly-owned by a province, territory, municipal or regional 

government, including, but not limited to: 

o Municipally-owned corporations (e.g. autonomous organizations owned by 

municipalities, used to produce or deliver local public services outside the local 

bureaucracy, such as water management, economic development or tourism 

agencies) 

o A provincial or territorial organization that delivers municipal services (e.g. community 

health services) 

o Any other form of local governance that exists outside of the municipality description 

(e.g. local service districts) 

 

• Federally or provincially incorporated not-for-profit organizations and registered charities 

• Indigenous recipients 

o Indigenous Governing Body, including the following: 

− A band council within the meaning of section 2 of the Indian Act 

− A First Nation, Inuit or Metis government or authority established pursuant to a 

Self-Government Agreement or a Comprehensive Land Claim Agreement 

between His Majesty the King in right of Canada and an Indigenous people of 

Canada, that has been approved, given effect and declared valid by federal 

legislation 

− A First Nation, Inuit or Metis government that is established by or under 

legislation whether federal or provincial that incorporates a governance 

structure 

o A federally or provincially incorporated not-for-profit organization whose primary 

mandate is to serve Indigenous peoples (e.g. Friendship centres, aboriginal 

women's associations) 

o Not-for-profit Indigenous development corporations 

 

Ineligible applicants include, but are not limited to: 

• Commercial and for-profit organizations 

• Individuals and private citizens  

• Federal entities, including federal Crown corporations 

 

To be considered eligible for funding, applicants must demonstrate that they have the required 

authority to undertake the project on the building/asset or land.  

https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/i-5/


 
 

4 
 

Please Note: 

➢ The Primary Contact must be directly affiliated with the applicant organization and duly 

authorized to submit an application.  

➢ The Secondary Contact may be a third party engaged to support in the completion of an 

application (as applicable). 

 

What kinds of projects are eligible for funding? 

The GICB Program funds two types of projects: 

• Retrofits, repairs and upgrades to existing community buildings. Retrofits are 

changes to an existing building/asset that seek to renovate, upgrade, or repair aspects 

of the building/asset in a manner that improves environmental outcomes. Retrofits must 

be to a facility that is fully accessible to the public and that will provide non-commercial 

services to the community. For a detailed description of retrofit projects and their 

conditions for eligibility, see the section below “Retrofits - Applying for funding for retrofits, 

repairs and upgrades to existing buildings.” 

 

• The construction of new community buildings. New builds must be of a 

building/asset that is open and fully accessible to the public and that will provide non-

commercial services to the community. For a detailed description of new build projects 

and their conditions for eligibility, please see the section below "New builds - Applying 

for funding for the construction of new community buildings." 

 

To be eligible for funding, retrofitted and new buildings must be in areas with underserved 

populations experiencing higher needs and be the site of programming and/or activities that 

demonstrably serve these populations. 

 

 

Types of projects and funding streams  

The GICB Program has  two main funding streams: a continuous, non-competitive intake for small 

and medium retrofits, and a scheduled, competitive intake process for large retrofits and new 

builds.  

Continuous intake stream for small and medium retrofit projects across Canada. 

• Small retrofit projects are those that range in size from $100,000 to $249,999 in total 

eligible costs.  

• Medium retrofit projects are those that range in size from $250,000 to $2,999,999 in 

total eligible costs.  

Scheduled competitive intake for large retrofits and new buildings across Canada. 

• Large retrofit projects are those that range in size from $3,000,000 to $25,000,000* in 

total eligible costs. 

• New build projects are those that range in size from $3,000,000 to $25,000,000* in total 

eligible costs.  

* Projects in excess of $25,000,000 may be considered on a case-by case basis. 



  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

5 
 

 

A minimum of $150 million will be allocated on 

a distinctions-basis to Indigenous projects 

being led by and for Indigenous populations 

and communities. Indigenous applicants are 

encouraged to apply for projects of all types 

and sizes.  

 

How do I apply? 

Applications will be accepted until February 

28, 2023 at 15:00 (Eastern Time) through 

Infrastructure Canada’s online and accessible 

application portal. Applicants who are unable 

to apply through the portal are asked to reach 

out to the GICB Program team at gicbp-

pbcvi@infc.gc.ca  

 

Eligible applicants must submit a separate 

application for each project they wish to have 

considered for funding. 

 In case of multiple applications from a single 

applicant, applicants must provide ranking 

information regarding the priority of each 

project.  

 

Continuous intake stream 

Applicants with small and medium retrofit projects to existing community buildings ranging in 

total eligible cost from $100,000 to $2,999,999 are accepted on a continuous basis until February 

28, 2023 at 15:00 (ET).  

 

The selection of projects for funding is based on eligibility criteria and the achievement of a 

minimum merit threshold as well as the availability of funding. For more details on eligibility and 

merit criteria for the continuous intake stream, please see “How will my application for retrofit 

funding be evaluated?” 

 

Scheduled intake stream  

Applications for large retrofit projects to existing community buildings or new community 

building projects with total eligible costs ranging from $3 million to $25 million* are accepted 

through a scheduled, competitive intake process until February 28, 2023 at 15:00 (ET).  
* Projects in excess of $25,000,000 may be considered on a case-by case basis. 

 

The selection of projects for funding is based on eligibility criteria and the competitive evaluation 

of all applications using merit criteria. For more details on eligibility and merit criteria for the 

scheduled intake stream, please see “How will my application for retrofit funding be evaluated?” 

and “How will my application for funding for a new building project be evaluated?”  

How is the size of my project 

determined? 
 

The size of a project is based on total eligible 

costs. This figure is lower than total project 

costs because certain expenses will not be 

reimbursed by Infrastructure Canada (e.g., land, 

lease of building, staff salaries, maintenance 

and operations, etc.)  

 

Please refer to the sections What costs are 

eligible? and What costs are ineligible? to 

determine the federal contribution for your 

project and the balance of funds your 

organization will need to secure for your project. 
 

The maximum federal contribution amount 

approved is described in the section entitled 

How much of my costs will this program cover? 

Any cost increases or overruns for the project 

will be the responsibility of funding recipients.  

mailto:gicbp-pbcvi@infc.gc.ca
mailto:gicbp-pbcvi@infc.gc.ca


 
 

6 
 

What are the minimum requirements for buildings?  

The following are required for projects of all types, sizes and streams: 

• The building/asset must be a non-commercial community-oriented structure or space that 

provides open, available, and publicly-accessible community services.  

• The building/asset must be located in an area with underserved populations experiencing 

higher needs and be the site of the publicly-accessible programming and/or activities that 

demonstrably serve these populations. 

• The building/asset must be an eligible asset type. 

• At least two-thirds of the building/asset’s floor space must be used for publicly open and 

accessible services. Please see section below on Mixed-Use Buildings.  

• The applicant must have authority over the building/asset either as the owner or have 

secured an agreement with the asset owner for a minimum of 6 years, to carry out the project. 

(Note: Asset ownership will be confirmed for all approved projects through the provision of a 

signed proof of ownership, a declaration or written authority that the applicant has permission 

from the owner to undertake the project.)  

• Applicants must award contracts in a way that is fair, transparent and competitive. If you have 

or are planning to award non-competitive contracts (sole source) as part of your project, you 

must receive authorization from the Government of Canada for these costs to be deemed 

eligible for federal reimbursement. See section below on Non-competitive Procurement (Sole 

Sourcing). 

• The project must be implemented no earlier than April 1st, 2021, and completed no later than 

March 31st, 2026.  

• Applications for completed projects will not be considered for funding.  

• The applicant must submit their building’s structural information, energy profile, and GHG 

emissions using the RETScreen® Expert software (retrofits only). 

• The project must not lead to an increase in the building’s operational GHG emissions (retrofits 

only). 

• Applicants for new construction projects must demonstrate that a climate risk assessment 

was conducted and mitigation measures are identified for the project. For retrofit projects, 

applicants must demonstrate that climate data was examined to identify the risks and 

associated mitigation measures for the project. 

• The applicant must commit to securing the necessary capital to proceed if approved for 

federal funding.  

• The applicant must attest to the manner in which the project conforms to relevant building 

and construction laws and regulations. This includes the completion (or planned completion) 

of an environmental assessment, as well as  public and Indigenous consultation as may be 

required by federal and provincial/territorial governments. 

• The applicant must attest to the manner in which the project aligns with building standards 

and codes that apply to the jurisdiction of the existing building and, as applicable, those set 

out in the section entitled “What are the required construction standards for new buildings?” 

• All new build project applicants must attest that the project will, at a minimum, meet the 

highest published accessibility standard(s) – as defined in the Canadian Standards 

Association's Technical Standard Accessible Design for the Built Environment (CAN/CSA 

B651-18) (or its most recent version) or relevant provincial or territorial building codes, or 

municipal by-laws.   

https://www.csagroup.org/wp-content/uploads/B651-18_EN_Errata_.pdf
https://www.csagroup.org/wp-content/uploads/B651-18_EN_Errata_.pdf
https://www.csagroup.org/wp-content/uploads/B651-18_EN_Errata_.pdf


  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

7 
 

What are the specific application requirements?  

Retrofits - Applying for funding for retrofits, repairs and upgrades to existing 

buildings  
 

What kinds of buildings can be retrofitted?  

The GICB Program provides funding towards retrofits, repairs, and upgrades to the space of a 

community building that is accessible to the public and provides a community service.  

 

The expansion or addition of 30% or greater of an existing building’s footprint* is considered a 

new build project. Projects involving the demolition of over 30% of an existing building’s footprint 

are also considered new build projects. Projects involving the demolition and/or rebuilding of 

under 30% of an existing building's floor space and reconstruct/renovate/rebuild up to 30% of the 

building's baseline footprint are considered retrofit projects.  

 
* A building’s footprint provides the outline of a building drawn along the exterior walls, with a description 

of the exact size, shape, and location of its foundation. Floorspace is the surface area of the floor(s) in a 

building. 

 

The following community buildings/assets are eligible for retrofit projects:  

• Community, culture and recreation facilities (e.g. community centres, public sports and 

recreation facilities; cultural buildings; libraries; child and youth centres; community adult 

learning centres; seniors activity centres)  

• Community health and wellness facilities (e.g. food safety and security, community food 

storage facilities, greenhouses and food banks; community health centres; addictions and 

mental health centres; rehabilitation centres, etc.)  

• Indigenous health and social infrastructure facilities (e.g. short-term medical recovery 

facilities, long-term care facilities/elders lodges, family violence and homeless shelters)  

• Indigenous education facilities (e.g. schools, universities and colleges, early childhood 

and daycares)  

 

What kinds of buildings cannot be retrofitted?  

The following types of buildings cannot be funded under the GICB Program:  

• Administrative buildings  

• Hospitals, police, fire, paramedic/ambulatory stations, long-term care facilities (except 

Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Daycare centres (except Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Shelters (except Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Religious facilities (places operating for religious worship, training or study; places 

administering or promoting organized religious activities)   

• Multi-unit housing and hospices  

• Schools and post-secondary facilities, including their recreational facilities (except 

Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Projects to be undertaken in a federally-owned building 

• Public Works buildings and associated facilities (utilities, water treatment plants, etc.) 

 



 
 

8 
 

What types of retrofit measures are eligible? 

Eligible retrofits must include green retrofit measures, and, where applicable, must include 

measures that increase the overall accessibility and/or safety  of the building.  

 

Green retrofit measures and requirements  

Green retrofit measures are those that renovate, upgrade, and/or repair aspects of a physical 

building in a way that improves environmental outcomes.  

In order to be eligible for funding consideration, all retrofit projects are encouraged to achieve at 

least 25% in energy efficiency improvements compared to the building's baseline energy 

consumption.  Projects with greater energy efficiency improvements will receive a higher score 

and are more likely to be selected for funding.   

 

Projects that demonstrate the ability to achieve greater GHG emission reductions relative to the 

building’s baseline will receive a higher score. 

 

Examples of retrofit measures could include: 

• Sealing with caulking or spray foam 

• Adding insulation 

• Upgrading lighting systems 

• Replacing window glazing 

• Updating low-flow faucets with sensors 

and automatic shut-offs 

• Installing sub-metering 

• HVAC upgrades 

• Implementation of new operating 

mechanisms such as: 

− An energy management system 

− Building automation system 

− Sensors 

− Control equipment 

− Metering equipment 

• Related communication systems to 

support above renovations 

Other examples of retrofits can include but 

are not limited to: 

• Significant reconfigurations to the 

interior for the purpose of energy 

savings 

• Roof replacement 

• Climate resilience retrofits 

• Adding or rearranging windows to 

increase interior sunlight 

• Renewable energy retrofits 

• Solar PV array 

• Wind turbines 

• Geothermal exchange systems 

 

 

Applicants are encouraged to consider including retrofit measures that will increase the resilience 

of the building to climate change impacts. For example, projects located in a high wind area might 

consider using wind resistant material or design, and projects located in areas with high risks of 

flooding may consider flood-resilience design elements.     

 

While resiliency measures and improvements are not required for a project, applicants must 

demonstrate that they have considered future potential climate impacts on their project, and the 

current resilience of the asset to those potential impacts.    

 

 



  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

9 
 

Accessibility and/or safety retrofit measures and requirements 

Retrofit measures that increase an eligible building’s accessibility and/or safety are eligible for 

funding under the GICB Program, as long as the project also meets the green retrofit measures 

criteria (e.g., ambitious energy efficiency improvements).  

 

Please consider the definitions of "disability" and "barriers" per the Accessible Canada Act (2019) 

in your application.  

• Barrier: means anything—including anything physical, architectural, technological or 

attitudinal, anything that is based on information or communications or anything that is the 

result of a policy or a practice—that hinders the full and equal participation in society of 

persons with an impairment, including a physical, mental, intellectual, cognitive, learning, 

communication or sensory impairment or a functional limitation. 

 

• Disability: means any impairment, including a physical, mental, intellectual, cognitive, 

learning, communication or sensory impairment—or a functional limitation—whether 

permanent, temporary or episodic in nature, or evident or not, that, in interaction with a 

barrier, hinders a person’s full and equal participation in society. 

 

Accessibility measures within retrofits or renovations can include, but are not limited to the 

following: 

− Wheelchair ramps for accessibility 

− Visual fire safety devices 

− Firm, slip resistant floor finishes, with no glare or busy patterns 

− Widened doorways 

− Washroom renovations for wheelchair access 

− Automated doorways 

− Tactile walking surface indicators 

− Installing screen readers  

− Assistive listening and communication enhancement technologies 

− Constructing a universally designed space 

− Smooth, ground level entrances without stairs  

− Surface textures that require low force to traverse on level, less than 5 pounds force per 

120 pounds rolling force  

− Single-hand operation with closed fist for operable components including fire alarm pull 

stations  

− Auditory output redundant with information on visual displays  

− Visual output redundant with information in auditory output  

− Choice of language on speech output  

− Ramp access in swimming pools  

− Instruction that presents material both orally and visually  

− Labels in large print and/or braille on equipment control buttons 

 

Retrofit projects that intend to include improved accessibility measures are encouraged to meet 

the Canadian Standards Association's Technical Standard Accessible Design for the Built 

Environment (CAN/CSA B651-18) (or its most recent version) or relevant provincial or territorial 

building codes, or municipal by-laws.   

 

https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/a-0.6/page-1.html#h-1153392
https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/programs/accessible-people-disabilities/act-summary.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/programs/accessible-people-disabilities/act-summary.html
https://www.csagroup.org/wp-content/uploads/B651-18_EN_Errata_.pdf
https://www.csagroup.org/wp-content/uploads/B651-18_EN_Errata_.pdf


 
 

10 
 

What kinds of retrofit measures are ineligible? 

The following measures and activities are ineligible under the GICB Program:  

• Electricity and/or energy production, transmission, and distribution 

− Electricity production for sale on the market(except in jurisdictions that require energy 

to be sold back to the grid) 

− Transmission and distribution infrastructure (district energy) 

• Low-emission fuels 

− Fuel transportation infrastructure 

− Production of low emissions fuels for sale on the market 

• Research, Development and Demonstration (RD&D) 

− Any RD&D projects aimed at demonstrating the effectiveness of a product or 

technology used as part of the project must conclude prior to the application. Any 

concurrent RD&D activities cannot be included in the project scope and costs. 

Exceptions may be given to certain technologies at the discretion of INFC.  

 

How will my application for retrofit funding be evaluated?  

Continuous and Scheduled intake (Small/medium retrofits & Large retrofits) 

• Small/Medium retrofit projects with total eligible project costs between $100,000 and 

$2,999,999 are evaluated on a continuous basis, with projects needing to meet or exceed 

a minimum merit score threshold in order to be granted funding.  

• Large retrofit projects with total eligible project costs between $3,000,000 and 

$25,000,000 are evaluated on a competitive basis, with projects being scored and ranked 

against one another.  

Retrofit projects that meet all mandatory eligibility criteria are evaluated based on the strength of 

the application and will receive a merit score in relation to the following criteria: 

 

Located in and demonstrate the ability to serve one or more communities with high needs: 

Projects that provide greater benefits to high need communities will receive a higher score.  

Increased accessibility: Projects that increase accessibility and projects that commit to including 

accessibility elements that meet the highest standards for accessibility will receive a higher score.  

GHG Reductions: Projects that demonstrate the ability to achieve greater GHG emission 

reductions relative to the buildings baseline will receive a higher score.  

Energy Savings: Projects that will achieve at least 25% in energy efficiency improvements 

compared to the building’s baseline energy consumption, as calculated with the RETScreen 

Expert software, will receive a higher score.  

Climate resiliency and adoption of best practices: Projects that demonstrate strong climate 

resiliency considerations and measures will receive a higher score. Applicants must consult 

climate data to identify climate risks relevant to their project/building location. Projects that provide 

clear, reasonable and accurate detail for why climate resiliency is already addressed/ not within 

the scope of the project will not be subject to this criterion and will be assessed relative to other 

project merits.  

Confidence in delivery/risk: Applicants who can demonstrate strong project risk identification 

and propose practical mitigation measures will receive a higher score. Other factors considered 

under this criterion include: outcomes of community consultation(s) undertaken, permits 

identified/obtained, phase of the project’s design. 



  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

11 
 

New builds - Applying for funding for the construction of new community 

buildings 

The construction of new community buildings is eligible under the GICB Program in cases where  

construction will fill a missing or distinct gap in a service requirement of high needs communities 

where critical community infrastructure is lacking.  

 

What kinds of buildings can be newly constructed? 

Eligible new buildings construction projects must be facilities that are accessible to the public and 

that provide a community service. They include the following:  

• Community, culture and recreation facilities (e.g. community centres; libraries, public sports 

and recreation facilities; cultural buildings; child and youth centres; community adult learning 

centres; seniors’ activity centres) 

• Indigenous health and social infrastructure facilities (e.g. community health centres, long-

term care facilities/elders’ lodges, family violence and homeless shelters) 

• Indigenous education facilities (e.g. schools, universities and colleges, early childhood and 

daycares) 

All new building projects must be planned to be completed within the timeframe between April 1, 

2021 and March 31, 2026. 

 

What types of new buildings are ineligible?  

The following types of buildings cannot be funded under the GICB Program:   

• Community health and wellness facilities (e.g. Community health centres, community 

greenhouses, etc.) except Indigenous facilities specified as eligible.  

• Administrative buildings  

• Hospitals, police, fire, paramedic/ambulatory stations, long-term care facilities (except 

Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Daycare centres (except Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Shelters (except Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Religious facilities (places operating for religious worship, training or study; places 

administering or promoting organized religious activities)  

• Multi-unit housing and hospices  

• Schools and post-secondary facilities, including their recreational facilities (except 

Indigenous facilities specified as eligible)  

• Projects to be undertaken in a federally-owned building  

• Public Works buildings and associated facilities (utilities, water treatment plants, etc.) 

 

What are the required construction standards for new buildings?  

On June 21, 2022 the Canada Green Building Council (CAGBC) introduced the latest version (v3) 

of its Zero Carbon Building (ZCB) Design Standard. In accordance with the requirements set by 

the CAGBC, all buildings in Canada seeking the ZCB-Design Standard certification must register 

and certify the design of their building under the new ZCB-Design Standard v3.  



 
 

12 
 

All applications for New Build projects under the GICB Program’s second scheduled intake will 

be required to meet the ZCB-Design Standard v3. Exceptions to this requirement will be granted 

if a project was registered with the CAGBC’s ZCB-Design Standard v2 prior to the September 29, 

2022 deadline for version 2. 

New construction projects will be required to meet the minimum standards below.  

Built to be net-zero carbon  

− A net-zero carbon building means a highly energy efficient building that produces onsite, or 

procures, carbon-free renewable energy or high-quality carbon offsets in an amount 

sufficient to offset the annual carbon emissions associated with building materials and 

operation without the need for a transition plan.  

− An attestation letter from a qualified registered professional (i.e. a professional engineer, 

architect or certified engineering technologist etc.) that verifies that the project is designed 

to meet the Zero Carbon Building Design Standard V3 without the need for a net-zero 

carbon transition plan is required. The attestation letter is intended to provide the required 

level of assurance that the project will be able to obtain ZCB-Design V3 certification. 

OR  

Built to be net-zero-carbon-ready  

− A net-zero-carbon-ready building is one that has been designed and built to a level of 

performance such that in accordance with a transition plan it will, i.e. with the addition of 

solar panels or other renewable energy technologies, achieve net-zero performance in 

carbon emissions.  

− An attestation letter from a qualified registered professional (i.e. a professional engineer, 

architect or certified engineering technologist etc.) that verifies that the project is designed 

to meet the Zero Carbon Building Design Standard V3 with a transition plan is required. The 

transition plan for achieving net-zero-carbon performance is also required as part of the 

application. 

OR  

Be exempt from net-zero-carbon and net-zero-carbon-ready and built to the highest 

standard  

− Applicants from remote and/or Northern communities, (including all communities in the 

territories and typically climate Zone 8 - communities with more than 7000 Heating Degree 

Days, as identified in the 2017 National Energy Code of Canada for Buildings) may seek an 

exemption to the net-zero requirement for new builds if the project is in a location where 

standards cannot be met due to geographical or logistical constraints.  

− In cases where an applicant is seeking an exemption, their new building must be built to a 

‘high efficiency standard,’ that will allow the building’s energy performance to exceed the 

2017 National Energy Code of Canada for Buildings, or the provincial or territorial code 

(where the project site is located), whichever code is the higher standard. 

− An attestation letter from a qualified registered professional (i.e. a professional engineer, 

architect or certified engineering technologist etc.) that verifies that the building is designed 

to exceed the energy performance  of the 2017 National Energy Code of Canada for 

Buildings (or the newest energy code published) or the provincial or territorial code (where 

the project site is located), whichever code is the higher standard, is required. The specific 

design measures being implemented for the building are also required as part of the 

application. 

https://www.greenbuildingadvisor.com/article/climate-zone-map-including-canada
http://publications.gc.ca/collections/collection_2018/cnrc-nrc/NR24-24-2017-eng.pdf


  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

13 
 

What other criteria does my new building project need to meet?  

 

Climate resiliency  

To be eligible for funding, new building projects must demonstrate they have conducted a climate 

risk assessment and identify measures mitigating all medium and high risks. The data sources 

used in the risk assessment must be cited, and explanations provided for identified climate risks.  

 

For instance, new buildings in areas prone to flooding or wildfires, should take into account the 

effects these events can have on the building and should include resiliency measures in their 

building’s design to mitigate the risks that these events will pose to the building and to the 

community.  

 

How will my application for funding for a new building project be evaluated?  

All new build projects will be evaluated on a competitive basis, with projects being scored and 

ranked against one another.  

 

New build projects that meet all mandatory eligibility criteria are evaluated based on the strength 

of the application and will receive a merit score in relation to the following criteria:   

 

Located in and demonstrates the ability to serve one or more communities with high 

needs: Projects that provide greater benefits to high needs communities will receive a higher 

score.  

 

Accessibility. All new build projects must meet the highest published accessibility standard(s) – 

as defined in the Canadian Standards Association's Technical Standard Accessible Design for 

the Built Environment (CAN/CSA B651-18) (or its most recent version) – or relevant provincial or 

territorial building codes, or municipal by-laws.   

 

Zero carbon design standard: Projects that are designed to meet net-zero carbon performance 

without the need for a transition plan will receive a higher score. Applicants may seek an 

exemption from this requirement, however the project will receive a lower score. 

 

Climate resiliency and best practices adoption: Projects that demonstrate strong climate 

resiliency considerations and mitigation measures will be scored higher. Applicants that consult 

and cite climate data sources to identify climate risks relevant to their building/location will receive 

a higher score.  

 

Confidence in delivery/risk: Projects that demonstrate a strong risk assessment and mitigation 

measures will receive a higher score. Factors considered under this criterion include the amount 

of information provided in the budget, outcomes of any community consultation(s) undertaken, 

whether permits have been identified/obtained, and the internal capacity to manage and deliver 

the project.  

 

  

https://www.csagroup.org/wp-content/uploads/B651-18_EN_Errata_.pdf
https://www.csagroup.org/wp-content/uploads/B651-18_EN_Errata_.pdf


 
 

14 
 

Additional Information 

 

How much of my costs will this program cover? 

The GICB Program will provide funding up to the following limits of total eligible project costs. 

 

Table 1: Project cost share, by project type and size 
 

 

Total Eligible Project Cost 

General program 

 

(up to % max from program) 

In the territories and for 

Indigenous communities* 

(up to % max from program) 

Retrofits up to $9,999,999  80% 100% 

Retrofits costs $10,000,000 +  60% 100% 

New builds up to first $9,999,999 of 

costs  

60% 100% 

New build costs $10,000,000 +  50% 100% 

 
*All Indigenous eligible recipients as defined in the terms and conditions of this program are eligible for up 

to 100% federal stacking.  

 

The maximum amount permitted from all Government of Canada sources is 100% of eligible 

costs.  

 

The maximum amount permitted from Canadian governments combined (including municipal, 

provincial and territorial) is 100% of eligible costs. 

 

Note:   

➢ Applicants are responsible for considering Inflation when deciding on project costs 

for projects. 

➢ The application of the maximum level of funding provided by the program towards eligible 

costs will be implemented on a marginal dollar value basis whereby the total eligible project 

costs up to the first $9,999,999 will have the higher maximum % funding rate applied and 

for every dollar above $10,000,000 the lower % rate applied. For example: a retrofit project 

with $12,000,000 in eligible costs would be provided a maximum of $9,999,999 x .80 + 

$2,000,001 x .60 = ($7,999,999.20) + ($1,200,000.60) = $9,199,999.80 in funding from 

GICB towards eligible costs.  

 

Special Consideration: Applicants are responsible for considering Government of Canada 

funding program eligibility criteria and funding limits as project costs cannot necessarily be 

stacked or duplicated across multiple programs.  

 

If you have applied for, or have received funding from any other Infrastructure Canada program, 

you are advised to email us at gicbp-pbcvi@infc.gc.ca.  

mailto:gicbp-pbcvi@infc.gc.ca


  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

15 
 

When will I know if I my project has been selected for funding?  

Applicants are able to track the status of their application using the online application portal. Once 

a decision has been made on project funding, Infrastructure Canada will notify successful and 

unsuccessful applicants of the outcome of the process. If a project is approved for funding, 

Infrastructure Canada will contact the project’s primary contact and indicate next steps for moving 

forward with a funding agreement. This notification does not necessarily guarantee that federal 

funding will be provided. Funding may be subject to certain conditions, such as the completion of 

an environmental impact assessment, regulatory authorizations/permits, or consultations with 

Indigenous Peoples.  

 

How will I receive funding – as a grant or as a contribution?  

Funding amounts are determined based on an assessment of the recipient’s planned activities 

and budget submission, previous financial performance and the capacity of the recipient to 

achieve results.  

 

The type of funding received (grant or contribution) is determined based on the type of project 

and the amount of funds being requested.  

 

In general, funding is provided as a grant for small retrofit projects seeking $100,000 to $249,999. 

In some cases, retrofit projects under $250,000 may be funded through contribution agreements.  

 

Funding is provided as a contribution for all projects above $250,000.  

 

What is the maximum amount payable under this program?  

The maximum amount allocated to any retrofit project under this program is $250,000 in grant 

funding and $25 million in contribution funding.  

 

Larger retrofits and new build projects (above $25 million in total eligible costs) may also be 

considered in cases where the federal investment can be effectively delivered by March 31, 2026, 

either to complete the project or bring the project to a next phase of funding for completion where 

the investments are secured.  

 

What costs are eligible?  

Eligible costs are those considered by Infrastructure Canada to be direct and necessary for the 

successful implementation of an eligible project. Eligible expenditures for both grant funding and 

contribution funding under the GICB Program are as follows:  

• costs that are incurred between April 1, 2021, and March 31, 2026  

• costs to build, renovate, expand or improve fixed capital assets and community buildings 

• fees paid to professionals, technical personnel, consultants and contractors specifically 

engaged for the purpose of the renovation, expansion or improvement work or new builds 

of eligible infrastructure, including planning and energy audit costs 

• costs of environmental assessments, monitoring and follow up activities as required by the 

Impact Assessment Act or equivalent legislation 



 
 

16 
 

• costs associated with a public announcement and official ceremony or of required temporary 

or permanent signage that includes the cost of creation and posting of signage 

• costs for the purpose of Indigenous consultation/engagement activities 

• other costs that are considered to be direct and necessary for the successful implementation 

of the project and that are approved in advance by the Government of Canada 

• salaries, wages and other incremental costs (i.e. materials or equipment) of the recipient 

provided that:  

− the recipient confirms and substantiates that it is not economically feasible to tender a 

contract 

− the costs are incurred and directly in respect to the work that would have been subject 

of the contract, and  

− costs are approved in advance and are included (in a contribution agreement) 

Applicable to Indigenous and not-for-profit recipients only:  

• legal fees (excluding those related to litigation) up to the amount specifically identified within 

contribution agreement.  

 

What costs are ineligible?  

Ineligible costs include:  

• project costs incurred prior to April 1, 2021, or after March 31, 2026  

• services or work that is normally provided by the recipient or a related party 

• salaries and other employment benefits of any employees of the recipient except as outlined 

above in Eligible Project Expenditures 

• in-kind contributions (goods or services) 

• taxes, such as GST and HST, for which the recipient is eligible for a tax rebate and all other 

costs eligible for rebates 

• cost of leasing of equipment by the recipient except for as indicated in eligible costs above  

• legal fees (except as specifically indicated as eligible for Indigenous, non-government and 

not-for-profit recipients) 

• purchase or lease of real property (land or building), or any interest therein, and related 

costs 

• collateral on mortgage financing and payment of interest charges 

• structural renovations not specific to the project 

• costs related to marketing activities and business promotion 

• costs for activities intended to directly influence/lobby governments 

• travel costs for recipients (except costs that are necessary for the successful implementation 

of the project) 

• operations and maintenance costs, and  

• other costs not specifically related for the project.  

 



  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

17 
 

How will I be reimbursed for eligible project costs?  

 

Contributions  

Eligible project costs can be reimbursed to the recipient if a contribution agreement is signed by 

Infrastructure Canada and the recipient, and once all application payment conditions have been 

met.  

 

Under a contribution agreement, costs must first be incurred by the recipient, and if deemed 

eligible, will then be reimbursed at the prescribed percentage of the federal contribution.  

 

Grants  

Funding will be provided at the signature of the grant agreement between INFC and the recipient. 

Infrastructure Canada reserves the right to hold back a portion of grant funding to be released 

once all reporting conditions have been met. 

 

 

RETScreen® software requirements  

 

About RETScreen® 

Developed by Natural Resources Canada (NRCan), the software is free to download and works 

as a comprehensive ‘decision support tool’ for energy efficiency, renewable energy and 

cogeneration project feasibility analysis, as well as ongoing energy performance analysis.  

 

A completed RETScreen® Assessment provides an overview of a building’s current or baseline 

energy consumption, fuel consumption, energy cost savings, GHG emissions reductions, and the 

financial viability and risk analysis of a proposed project. 

 

All retrofit projects applying for funding under the GICB Program are required to submit their 

building’s structural information, energy profile, and GHG emissions using the RETScreen® 

Expert software.  

 

Applicants are required to enter information regarding their building and project into RETScreen® 

including: site location, building characteristics, current or baseline energy consumption, 

proposed measures, project costs, etc.  

 

Please consult Using RETScreen for your GICB application with Infrastructure Canada to 

complete your draft RETScreen. Applicants are encouraged to consult Natural Resources 

Canada at RETScreen@nrcan-rncan.gc.ca for advice and clarification prior to submitting their 

RETScreen Assessment.  

 

New build projects may create a RETScreen profile for their building(s) as well, but it is not 

required.  

 

For more information, please visit the RETScreen Capacity Building Page.  

  

https://nrcaniets.blob.core.windows.net/iets/RETScreen_for_the_GICB_program.pdf
mailto:RETScreen@nrcan-rncan.gc.ca
https://www.nrcan.gc.ca/energy/energy-offices-and-labs/canmetenergy/canmetenergy-varennes/retscreen-capacity-building/23363


 
 

18 
 

Non-competitive Procurement (Sole Sourcing) 

Are non-competitive procurement processes (“sole-source” contracts) allowed? 

All contracts must be awarded in a way that is fair, transparent and competitive. When non-

competitive contracts are necessary for the implementation of a project, Infrastructure Canada's 

approval of the contract as an eligible expenditure is required before the signature of the contract.  

 

The Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs, Infrastructure and Communities may approve projects 

involving non-competitive contracts that: 

• have an estimated value below $40,000 for construction or goods contracts, or $100,000 

for service contracts; or 

• are with a public sector entity; or 

• can only be performed by one person or entity; or 

• are with an Indigenous organization and or governing body and there is a benefit to an 

Indigenous community. 

If you are seeking a non-competitive procurement process outside of the Minister's delegation 

cited above, Infrastructure Canada will need to seek approval from the Treasury Board of Canada 

(TB). Obtaining Treasury Board approval is a lengthy and resource intensive process that may 

take several months and will require a strong rationale for the non-competitive procurement 

process as well as more complex and in-depth information requirements. 

 

Mixed Use Buildings 

Community buildings often serve multiple purposes and can include uses that are not eligible as 

stand alone buildings. For example, a community centre could include a portion of its space for a 

daycare, or a building could also provide some offices for administrative use but also include a 

majority of the space for a community hall. As noted above, at least two-thirds of the building or 

asset’s floor space must be used for publicly open and accessible services in order to be eligible. 

This permits some flexibility in determining eligibility of mixed use buildings. 

 

Note that the amount of funding requested may be adjusted to account for the amount of space 

that is used for publicly open and accessible services. Furthermore, some types of buildings 

remain ineligible (e.g., hospitals, police, fire, paramedic/ambulatory stations, schools and post-

secondary facilities).  

 

Environmental assessments  

An Environmental Assessment ensures that project impacts are carefully reviewed before a 

federal department or agency recommends whether a proposed project may proceed. Depending 

on where the project is located and the potential for adverse effects, an environmental impact 

assessment may be required prior to undertaking construction activities.  

 

Applicants are responsible for providing information to determine whether their project may 

require an impact assessment under the federal Impact Assessment Act (IAA), or an 

environmental assessment under Modern Treaties or Northern Regimes.  

If you are unsure of the legislative responsibilities, please consult the appropriate provincial or 

territorial government for environmental assessment requirements and the Impact Assessment 

https://laws.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/I-2.75/index.html


  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

19 
 

Agency of Canada’s (IAAC’s) website for the basics of federal IA requirements. Under the IAA, 

projects may be designated (s.8) or may be subject to requirements if they are on federal lands 

(s.82). EA requirements must be met for a project to proceed. 

 

Duty to consult  

The Government of Canada may have a legal duty to consult with, and if applicable, 

accommodate, Indigenous Peoples when it contemplates conduct that might adversely impact 

Indigenous or treaty rights. These rights include, but are not limited to, the right to hunt, fish, and 

practice traditional activities and ceremonies. Infrastructure Canada will assess potential impacts 

of projects on these constitutionally protected Indigenous and treaty rights to ensure that those 

affected are properly notified, consulted and, where required, accommodated.  

 

While the duty to consult is an obligation that rests with the Crown, the Government of Canada 

will expect funding recipients under the GICB program to carry out certain procedural aspects of 

consultation on a proposed project, where appropriate ( e.g. providing notification letters to, and 

organizing consultation sessions with, Indigenous communities that will be affected by the 

proposed project).  

 

Reporting and audit requirements  

All recipients of grant funding and contribution funding must provide reports to Infrastructure 

Canada. The terms of reporting requirements will be set out in project funding agreements. These 

may include any of the following: annual and final reports, status and progress updates, financial 

reports and evaluation reports. Annual and final reports will include, at minimum, information 

regarding the implementation progress of the retrofit or new building project and details of project 

funding and their management.  

 

Recipients undertaking projects with total eligible project costs of $10,000,000 and above will be 

required to report on Community Employment Benefits (CEB) to provide public reporting on the 

employment and procurement opportunities achieved with a range of target groups (e.g., 

apprentices, Indigenous peoples, women, persons with disabilities, veterans, youth, recent 

immigrants, small-sized, medium-sized and social enterprises) as detailed in the CEB General 

Guidance. The framework for CEB has been designed to encourage recipients to consider 

measures to increase access for specified groups to employment through their projects while 

ensuring compliance with all trade obligations. Recipients with projects below this threshold are 

also invited to report on these targets, but are not required to do so.  

 

Reports on progress toward climate-focused objectives can be created through the RETScreen 

Expert software by inputting the building’s new energy consumption information into the building’s 

profile. At minimum, the report should include the building’s net energy savings and net GHG 

emission reductions. Exact requirements regarding eligibility to hire an external third party to 

conduct reporting on behalf of the recipient(s) will be included in the contribution agreements with 

recipients. Infrastructure Canada will monitor approved projects to ensure that funds are used in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of the grant or contribution agreement.  

 

Recipients may be required to conduct and submit one audit over the course of the contribution 

agreement, carried out by an independent third party. Infrastructure Canada will reserve the right 

to review and audit recipients as deemed necessary.  

https://www.canada.ca/en/impact-assessment-agency.html
http://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/pub/other-autre/ceb-ace-eng.html
http://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/pub/other-autre/ceb-ace-eng.html


 
 

20 
 

Endorsement  

In order for Infrastructure Canada to provide funding, projects must be duly authorized or 

endorsed by a resolution of Council, Band or Board of Directors, as applicable. The resolution 

must be received before a grant or contribution agreement can be executed.  

 

Disposal of assets  

If at any time within six (6) years from the date of completion of the project, the recipient of project 

funding under the GICB Program sells, leases, encumbers or otherwise disposes of, directly or 

indirectly, any asset funded, in whole or in part, with the financial assistance contributed under 

the terms of the program, the recipient will have the responsibility to inform Infrastructure Canada 

and the recipient may be required, at Infrastructure Canada’s discretion, to repay the federal 

government contribution in full or in part. Grant agreements and contribution agreements will 

include clauses on the disposal of asset period.  

 

Privacy and Confidentiality  

The information provided by an applicant in their application and under any other form will be 

used by the Government of Canada for the review, evaluation and selection of applications under 

the Green and Inclusive Community Buildings Program, that is administered and managed by 

Infrastructure Canada, and/or for confirming past federal funding sought by the applicant.  

 

Federal government institutions are bound by the requirements of the Access to Information Act 

and the Privacy Act, as well as the Library and Archives Canada Act. These laws apply to the 

use, disclosure and retention of information (such as personal, confidential or other) under the 

control of federal government institutions.  

 

Applicants should note that Infrastructure Canada may consult and share the information provided 

in applications with other federal government institutions or other organizations for the purpose of 

assisting Infrastructure Canada with project review and evaluation, determining eligibility under 

other federal government programs, and confirming past federal funding sought by an applicant. 

Infrastructure Canada may also use and disclose the information to external experts (e.g., 

scientific, technical, financial, marketing, or commercialization), hired by the Government of 

Canada under contract with confidentiality obligations, for the purpose of assisting Infrastructure 

Canada with project review and evaluation and/or determining eligibility under other federal 

government programs.  

 

In submitting an application, applicants are consenting to such uses, sharing and disclosures of 

the information for the purposes described above. Applicants are invited to clearly identify in their 

application the provision of any information that contains trade secrets, is confidential or that if 

disclosed, could reasonably be expected to result in material financial loss or gain to, or to 

prejudice the competitive position of, a third party, or, to interfere with contractual or other 

negotiations of a third party, as outlined in section 20 of the Access to Information Act. Once a 

funding agreement is signed, the name of the successful applicant, location, date of approval, the 

funding amount, and the project description may be proactively disclosed to the public.  

https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/a-1/
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/p-21/index.html
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/L-7.7/


  GICB Applicant Guide 2022 

21 
 

 

Any questions?  

If you have any questions about the Green and Inclusive Community Buildings Program that were 

not answered by this guide, please contact the GICB Program team at gicbp-pbcvi@infc.gc.ca. 

 

 

 

Version date: December 2022 

 

mailto:gicbp-pbcvi@infc.gc.ca


 
Memorandum 

 

 
Date: 6 February, 2023 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re:  100 year centennial 
 
 
Background: 
At previous Council meetings there has been some discussion on Picture Butte’s incorporation and 100 
year centennial. Rhonda did some digging and found the official paperwork of when Picture Butte 
became a village. The Ministerial order to make the Village of Picture Butte a municipal entity was made 
on the 4th of February 1943. The first Council meeting of the Village of Picture Butte was held on the 22nd 
of February 1943.  
 
Prior to becoming a village the homesteads and buildings in the Picture Butte area were a part of the 
municipal district of Barons. 
 
The Village of Picture Butte became the Town of Picture Butte on the 1st of January, 1960. 
 
The 100 year centennial of the creation of what is now the Town of Picture Butte should be celebrated in 
2043. This will be 100 years from when Picture Butte was recognized as a municipality.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Ministerial Order of the creation of the Village of Picture Butte. 
2. Ministerial Order for the creation of the Town of Picture Butte. 

 
 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO  

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   















 
Memorandum 

 

 
Date: 9 February, 2023 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re:  Committee of the Whole Meeting Time 
 
 
Background: 
The next Committee of the Whole meeting is scheduled for Tuesday the 21st of February, beginning at 
6:30 p.m. We are planning on presenting the final 2023 operating and capital budget and to discuss the 
tax implications of the budget. In previous years we have allocated more time to discuss these matters. 
 
It is short notice but would Council like to meet on the 21st at an early time rather than 6:30 p.m. There 
will be a lot of information presented. Depending upon Council discussion I would expect the meeting to 
be three, possibly four hours long. 
 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO  

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



 
Request for Decision 

 

 
Date: 9 February, 2023 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re:  Sunset Park Engineered Drawings 
 
 
Background: 
On the 25th of January, 2023 the Town hosted an Open House for Sunset Park Phase 2 design. Attached to 
this document is a summary of the feedback received. 
 
Also attached are the preliminary designs for Sunset Park Phase 2. Things to note regarding the feedback 
we received at the open house and the designs. 
 

1. Back alley addition to the east lots on 9th Street - This was explored with the engineers. 
• There is only 6m from the back of the lot to the top of the pond slope. A back alley as per 

City of Lethbridge standards is 7m wide. 
• Steve Harty also recalled that it was a budget decision when designing Phase One. We 

could have chosen in the Phase One design and construction phase to dig the storm pond 
deeper with greater sloped walls. This would have required more excavation and thus more 
cost and it was obviously decided not to proceed with that option. 

• It would be a major undertaking to redesign and re-dig the existing storm pond to facilitate 
a back alley to the properties on the east side of 9th Street. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
To proceed with the current design of Phase 2 and not include a back alley for the properties on the east 
side of 9th Street North. 
 
 
 

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



2. Realigning Crescent Avenue 
• The design has Council’s preferred alignment of Crescent Avenue represented. 
• We can not please everyone in this matter.  
• Alberta Transportation requires us to have the distance from the Highway that is 

represented in the drawings. 
• Other options have previously been ruled out for the following reasons: 

i. Round about in Highway 25 – Was the most expensive option and was cost 
prohibitive. 

ii. Traffic lights at the intersection – Was the second most expensive option and was 
also cost prohibitive. 

iii. Dead ending Crescent Avenue – Was the most cost effective option but was the 
least supported by Council and the business owners. 

• Another option has been expressed and that is to dead end 9th Street, just north of the 
Water Distribution Centre, and require all residents to exit via Gibbons Avenue, 7th Street 
and then either Crescent or the Highway. Administration thinks that this option is not a 
better option than rerouting Crescent Avenue as presented for the following reasons: 

i. For the future residents on the south end of 9th Street the way to access the 
Highway is terrible and would have to impact the marketability of those lots. 

ii. All residents in Sunset Park will have to drive past St. Catherines elementary 
school which is already a congested area, especially at the start and end of a school 
day. 

iii. The benefits are minimal. It benefits residents on Crescent Avenue that live 
between 7th Street and the Highway, and Piron Place residents. It could benefit 
some people on 9th Street in that there will be less traffic on that road, while 
inconveniencing other residents on 9th Street due to access. 

 
Recommendation: 
To proceed with the realignment of Crescent Avenue as presented in the engineered drawings and as 
previously directed by Council. 
 

3. Multi-family units in the development 
• This does not have to be decided now and does not affect the design of Phase 2 as the plan 

has already been registered. 
• Phase 1 was exclusively Single detached dwellings with Architectural controls 

implemented.  
• What kind of residential developments Council wants Phase 2 to allow is a conversation 

that we will need to have in the future. 
4. Pedestrian Safety at Highway 25. 

• We can include in the design flashing lights at the pedestrian crossing across Highway 25. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. WSP Open House Summary 
2. Sunset Park Phase 2 preliminary drawings 

 
 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO  



 

L:\PROJECTS\Town of Picture Butte\221-13507-00 Sunset Park Phase 2\10 Correspondence\01 Client\TownMeeting-

Jan25\Let_Town_OpenHouseSummary_Jan25.docxWSP Canada Inc. 

3509, 6 Avenue North 

Lethbridge, AB 

Canada  T1H 5C1 

  

  

T: +1 403 327-7746 

F: +1 403 380-2825 

wsp.com 

2023-01-26 

   

 

Keith Davis, CAO 

Town of Picture Butte 

120 4th Street North 

Picture Butte, AB 

T0K 1V0 

 

Subject: Sunset Park Phase 2 – Open House Summary 

 

Dear Keith: 

Attached is a list of community suggestions for the development of Sunset Park Phase 2 in Picture 

Butte. The suggestions were provided by residents, council members, and other stakeholders who 

attended the open house at the Picture Butte Community Centre on January 25, 2023. Please keep 

this copy for your records. 

 

Key points from the list include: 

• Back-alley addition to the east lots on 9th Street. 

• Multiple traffic arrangement strategies. 

• Multi-family units in the development. 

• Pedestrian safety at Highway 25. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

  

Regan Lane, EIT 

Land Development 

      

 
RL/rl 
 

cc: Aaron Benson, Trent Purvis 

 
Encl. 

 



Sunset Park Phase 2 - Open House 

Project: Sunset Park - Phase 2 Residential Development 

Owner: Town of Picture Butte

Location: Picture Butte Community Centre

Date:  January 25, 2023

Item Questions/Suggestions for Record Submitted by:

7.0

- Make a cul-de-sac at the end of Street in Phase 2

- All traffic from Phase 1 and Phase 2 will be directed to take 7th Street to 

access Highway 25

- Widening 7th Street in front of St. Catherines School to accommodate 

bus traffic.

- Remove the four way stop on 7th Street and Crescent Avenue and make 

it a two way stop for faster traffic flow.

- Improve the road surface on intersection of 7th Street and Crescent 

Avenue 

Jan Bredeweg

5.0

Multi Units Residential

Tiny Homes

Trails 

Yves 

6.0 More land for Mult-family lots Leeon Hage

Traffic Circle would be a good option. It would be costly but would help 

slow traffic.
3.0

Kaye

Kaye

4.0
Make sure the crosswalk (pedestrian) across the highway is better 

indicated.
Kaye

Consider adding a back alley to the new lots on the east side of 9th Street 

in Phase 2. This would open up these lots for people interested in putting 

up a rear detached garage.

1.0 Casey West

2.0
Please make a road ASAP to help alleviate traffic on Gibbons Avenue 

(and school zone).

1



HIGHWAY AVENUE N

CRESCENT AVENUE

9 
ST

RE
ET

GIBBONS AVENUE

ROGERS AVENUE

3A
 S

TR
EE

T 
SO

UT
H

CENTENNIAL AVENUE

WATSON AVENUE

5  S TR E ET  S O UT H

4 
ST

RE
ET

 S
OU

TH

COWAN AVENUE SOUTH

RAILWAY AVENUEJAMIESON AVENUE

CRESCENT AVENUE

HIGHWAY AVENUE

2 STREET NORTH

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 D

RI
VE

PROJECT LOCATION

We see the future more clearly and design for it today.

WSP Project No:
Date:

WSP Canada Inc.  3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1  T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

ISSUED FOR ----
221-13507-00

----

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

 
 
 

PICTURE BUTTE

TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE

DRAWING INDEX
DRAWING NUMBER DRAWING TITLE

C000 Cover Sheet
C102 Streets and Sidewalks
C103 Street Signage Plan

C104 Sanitary Layout Plan

C105 Storm Layout Plan

C106 Water Layout Plan

C107 Building Grade Plan

C108 Overland Drainage

C109 Stormwater Management Plan

C201 9 Street Plan and Profile
C202 Crescent Avenue Realignment Plan and Profile

C203 Pond Connection Plan and Profile
C501 Intersection and Bulb Details
C502 Sections and Details
C503 Standard Details Sheet 1 of 2
C504 Standard Details Sheet 2 of 2

Legal Plan
UR/W Plan

ESC Plan & Details

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



11

CR
ES

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

10

4

3

5

12

4

3

13

8

9

7

11

6

6

5

9

10

24 25

25

50

6461
MR

54M
R 19

19

9 STREET N

65PUL

66
MR

TU

TU

TU

TUTU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU

TU
TU

TU

TU
TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU

TU TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU
TU

TU

TU
TU

TU
TU TU

TU
TU

TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.T

P

P
C

C

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO
PO

PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

62
63

53

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

10
.4018

.00

16
.52 9.0

0

10
.40

TIE TO EXISTING
ROAD AND SIDEWALK

2.00 LP MONO LG 3.80

2.00 LP MONO LG 3.80

2.00m SIDEWALK

POST AND CABLE FENCE
c/w PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

(SEE DETAIL 1 ON DWG C502)

POST AND CABLE FENCE
c/w PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

(SEE DETAIL 1 ON DWG C502)

PROPOSED LANE ACCESS

TIE TO EXISTING
ROAD

TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE
WATER TREATMENT BUILDING

HI
GH

W
AY

 25
 (H

IG
HW

AY
 A

VE
NU

E 
N)

EXISTING POWER POLE
AND GUY WIRE TO BE

REMOVED (BY OTHERS

EXISTING POWER POLE
AND GUY WIRE TO BE

REMOVED (BY OTHERS

EXISTING POWER POLE
TO BE REMOVED (BY OTHERS

R113.41

R103.02

R76.54

R87.26

R89.24

R99.63

R8.8
0

R100.00

R103.51

R8.80

R3
3.7

5
R11

.25

R33.75

R10
.00

R1
0.0

0

R33.75

R1
1.2

5

R33.75

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

VALVE

HYDRANT

LOW PROFILE MONOLITHIC WALK

SINGLE CATCH BASIN

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ON RADII & ROADWAYS ARE TO LIP OF GUTTER UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

2. WHEEL CHAIR RAMPS ARE REQUIRED AS SHOWN.
3. SUBGRADE DRAINS AT LIP OF GUTTER LOCATIONS, TIED TO NEAREST MANHOLE, ARE

REQUIRED.
4. ALL MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE INSTALLED  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN OF

PICTURE BUTTE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION. ANY CONSIDERED
ALTERNATIVES TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE PRIOR
TO INSTALLATION.

WHEEL CHAIR RAMP

NOTES

LEGEND

EXISTING FENCE

EXISTING WOODEN FENCE

EXISTING OVERHEAD POWERLINE

TYPE 1 MANHOLE

POPO

PROPOSED EXISTING

POWER POLE

GUY WIRE

LIGHT POLE

TRANSFORMER

P.P.

T
P
C

PEDESTAL

COMMUNICATION PEDESTAL

CURB STOPCCCC

EXISTING UNDERGROUND TELUS LINETUTU

ROUND TOP CATCH BASIN

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
10

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

02
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

STREETS AND SIDEWALKS
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C102 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-07

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

show 3.5m
UR/W

Where is
the
termination
of the
existing
sidewalk?
IMH
02/08/2023

Fence?

Fence?

Show
development
boundary

IMH 02/08/2023

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



11

CR
ES

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

10

4

3

5

12

4

3

13

8

9

7

11

6

6

5

9

10

24 25

25

50

6461
MR

54M
R 19

19

9 STREET N

65PUL

66
MR

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.T

P

P
C

C

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

62
63

53

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

EXISTING STOP SIGN (RA-1)

PROPOSED
YIELD SIGN (RA-2)

PEDESTRIAN CROSS WALK SIGN (RA-4R)

PROPOSED ROAD
CLOSED SIGN (WA-8)

PROPOSED
PEDESTRIAN CROSS WALK SIGN (RA-4L)

PROPOSED
PEDESTRIAN CROSS WALK SIGN (RA-4R)

HI
GH

W
AY

 25
 (H

IG
HW

AY
 A

VE
NU

E 
N)

PROPOSED ROAD
CLOSED SIGN (WA-8)

1. ALL SIGNS SHALL BE REFLECTIVE. STREET NAME SIGNS SHALL HAVE WHITE LETTERING ON
BLUE BACKGROUND. SIGN BRACKETS SHALL BE OF BOLT ON CAST ALUMINIUM TYPE
CONSTRUCTION.

2. ALL SIGNS SHALL BE MOUNTED ON 2.4 INCH OUTSIDE DIAMETER 18 GAUGE GALVANIZED
STEEL PIPE POSTS AND PLACED AT LOCATIONS APPROVED BY THE TOWN. THE SIGNPOST
MUST BE SET IN CONCRETE WITH A MINIMUM BURY DEPTH OF 1.0m. THE SIGNPOST MUST BE
APPROPRIATELY SECURED WITHIN THE CONCRETE TO PREVENT THE POST FROM
BECOMING LOSE AND TURNING.

3. CROSS WALKS TO BE ZEBRA STYLE.
4. ALL CROSS WALKS SHALL BE THERMOPLASTIC INLAID PAVEMENT MARKINGS.
5. POSTED SPEED ON 9 STREET, AND CRESCENT AVENUE SHALL BE 30 km/h.
6. CONTRACTORS TO SUPPLY AND INSTALL ONE SET OF STREET IDENTIFICATION SIGNS AT

EACH CORNER.
7. STREET NAME SIGNS TO BE FABRICATED ACCORDING TO THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE

SPECIFICATIONS.
8. ALL MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE INSTALLED  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN OF

PICTURE BUTTE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION. ANY CONSIDERED
ALTERNATIVES TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE  PRIOR
TO INSTALLATION.

9. IN ALL MARKED CROSS WALKS THE SIGNS (RA-4-L AND RA-4-R) ARE TO BE ORIENTED WITH
THE DIRECTION OF PEDESTRIAN TRAVEL.

10. ENSURE THAT THE STREET NAME SUFFIX IS ABBREVIATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN
OF PICTURE BUTTE NAMING POLICY.

NOTES

9 STREET SPEED SIGN
N.T.S.

STOP SIGN - RA-1
N.T.S.

PEDESTRIAN CROSS WALK-RA-4L
N.T.S.

PEDESTRIAN CROSS WALK-RA-4R
N.T.S.

ROAD CLOSED SIGN-WA-8
N.T.S.

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
14

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

03
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

STREET SIGNAGE PLAN
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C103 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-03

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Hatch not defined in
legend.  Is this to be
landscaped?  if so,
identify as such.

IMH 02/08/2023 Missing Sign

IMH 02/08/2023

Missing Sign

IMH 02/08/2023

Something odd about
this curve.
IMH 02/08/2023

Show
development
boundary

IMH 02/08/2023

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



11

10

4

3

5

12

4

3

13

8

9

7

11

6

6

5

9

10

24 25

25

50

6461
MR

54M
R 19

19

65PUL

66
MR

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

62
63

53

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

S
200 PVC

120.00 @
0 .50%

S 200 P V C106.6 4 @ 0.5 0%

S 
20

0 P
VC

33
.80

 @
 0.

50
%

S 200 PVC
58.37 @ 1.92%

EX S 200 PVC

43.21 @ 0.65%

S MH 1
RIM=905.73
N=903.67
S=903.64

S MH 2
RIM=906.17
NW=903.11
NE=903.05

S MH 3
RIM=906.15
SE=902.82
SW=902.88

S MH 4
RIM=905.42
NW=901.70

EX S MH 3
RIM=906.34
N=904.28
S=904.27

EX S MH 5
RIM=906.06
SE=901.77

EX S MH 6
RIM=905.39
NE=901.89
NW=902.04

EX S MH 7
RIM=904.99
SW=901.53

EX S 200 PVC21.41 @ 1.24%

EX
 S

 2
00

 P
VC

11
1.7

5 @
 0

.32
%

5.99

1.92

10.97

9.00

8.3
0

C201

C202

HI
GH

W
AY

 25
 (H

IG
HW

AY
 A

VE
NU

E 
N)

C2
03

18.00

16
.52

SANITARY SEWER

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

1. CONFIRM INVERTS OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES.

2. ALL MANHOLES TO BE SRC CONCRETE.
3. ALL MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE INSTALLED  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN

OF PICTURE BUTTE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION. ANY CONSIDERED
ALTERNATIVES TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE
PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

4. ALL PIPES WITH LESS THAN 2.10m OF COVER ARE TO BE INSULATED ACCORDING TO
CITY OF LETHBRIDGE DETAIL S-19 (SEE DWG C503)

BLOCK PROFILE NUMBER

NOTES

LEGEND

TYPE 1 MANHOLE

DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY

PROPOSED EXISTING

C201

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
17

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

04
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

SANITARY LAYOUT PLAN
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C104 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-03

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



11

CR
ES

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

10

4

3

5

12

4

3

13

8

9

7

11

6

6

5

9

10

24 25

25

50

6461
MR

54M
R 19

19

9 STREET N

65PUL

66
MR

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

62
63

53

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

ST 375 PVC

52.59 @
 0.33%

S T 37 5 P V C49 .3 5 @ 0.33%

ST
 37

5 P
VC

59
.73

 @
 0.

15
%

EX ST 375 PVC

107.97 @ 0.50%
EX ST 37

5 PVC

59.5
1 @

 0.1
5%

ST MH A
RIM=905.72
NE=904.16
SW=904.16

ST MH B
RIM=905.51
N=903.86
E=903.78
S=903.87

ST MH D
RIM=906.10
NW=904.03

EX ST MH C
RIM=905.70
N=903.98
E=903.80

LSCB 1
RIM=904.29
W=903.71
E=903.69

2.00
4.00

6.5
0

6.50

11.10

9.69

9.07

15
.63

C201

C202

HI
GH

W
AY

 25
 (H

IG
HW

AY
 A

VE
NU

E 
N)

CB B-1
RIM=905.43

CB B-2
RIM=905.43

CB C-1
RIM=905.50

CB C-2
RIM=905.50

CB D-1
RIM=906.15

C2
03

LSCB 2
RIM=904.12
W=903.67
SE=903.67
NW=903.67

LSCB 3
RIM=904.14
NW=903.60
SE=903.60

LSCB 4
RIM=904.10
NW=903.54
SW=903.54

LSCB 5
RIM=904.15
SE=903.69

LSCB 6
RIM=904.18
NE=903.66
NW=903.65

LSCB 7
RIM=904.11
NE=903.60
SW=903.60

EX
 S

T 1
00

 H
DP

E
8.8

0 @
 0.

23
%

EX ST 100 HDPE
32.81 @ 0.20%

EX ST 100 HDPE
32.66 @ 0.20%

EX
 S

T 
10

0 
HD

PE
33

.90
 @

 0.
17

%
EX

 S
T 

10
0 

HD
PE

33
.89

 @
 0.

17
%

EX ST 100 HDPE

20.82 @ 0.17%

EX ST 100 HDPE
14.65 @ 0.20%

1. CONFIRM INVERTS OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES.

2. ALL MANHOLES TO BE SRC CONCRETE.
3. ALL STORM PIPE TO BE SDR 35.
4. ALL MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE INSTALLED  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN

OF PICTURE BUTTE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION. ANY CONSIDERED
ALTERNATIVES TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE
PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

5. ALL PIPES WITH LESS THAN 2.10m OF COVER ARE TO BE INSULATED ACCORDING TO
CITY OF LETHBRIDGE DETAIL S-19 (SEE DWG C503)

NOTES

LEGEND

SINGLE CATCH BASIN

STORM SEWER

EXISTING STORM SEWER

BLOCK PROFILE NUMBER

DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY

C201

PROPOSED EXISTING

TYPE 1 MANHOLE

ROUND TOP CATCH BASIN

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
19

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

05
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

STORM LAYOUT PLAN
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C105 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-03

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Are there ICDs in the
catchbasins to restrict flow?
If so, what size?
IMH 02/08/2023

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



11

CR
ES

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

10

4

3

5

12

4

3

13

8

9

7

11

6

6

5

9

10

24 25

25

50

6461
MR

54M
R 19

19

9 STREET N

65PUL

66
MR

CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

62
63

53

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

EX W 150

W
 150 PVC

W 150 PVC

W
150

PVC

6.0
0

6.00 HOT TAP INTO EXISTING
150 WATER LINE

HI
GH

W
AY

 25
 (H

IG
HW

AY
 A

VE
NU

E 
N)

EX
 W

 15
0 (

RA
W

 W
AT

ER
)

E 
W

 15
0 P

VC

C201

C202C2
03

WATERMAIN

HYDRANT

1. CONFIRM INVERTS OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY
DISCREPANCIES.

2. ALL WATERMAINS TO BE PVC DR 18 CL 150 UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.
3. ALL MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE INSTALLED  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN

OF PICTURE BUTTE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION. ANY CONSIDERED
ALTERNATIVES TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE
PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

4. ALL PIPES WITH LESS THAN 2.10m OF COVER ARE TO BE INSULATED ACCORDING TO
CITY OF LETHBRIDGE DETAIL S-19 (SEE DWG C503)

NOTES

LEGEND
EXISTING WATERMAIN

CURB STOP

BLOCK PROFILE NUMBER

VALVE

DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY

PROPOSED EXISTING

C201

CCCC

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
22

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

06
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

WATER LAYOUT PLAN
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C106 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-02

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Need to install
valve here to
provide for
hydrant
separation
IMH 02/08/2023

???

Same as Trent's sanitary comment.  Lots 11-13 can be serviced from Crescent Ave.

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



11

CR
ES

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

25

25
61

MR

54M
R 19

19

9 STREET N

CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC
CC

CC

T

P

P
C

C

A
905.23903.03906.04904.43**

904.43**906.70905.98---
51

A
905.16903.03906.04904.36**

904.36**906.45905.98---
52

A
905.00

901.00

905.76

904.20**

904.20**

905.71

905.59

---55

A
904.89

899.40

905.78

904.09**

904.09**

906.22

905.74

---56

A
904.89

898.41

905.79

904.09**

904.09**

906.22

905.74

---57

A
904.90

898.28

905.81

904.10**

904.10**

906.28

905.81

---58 A
904.90898.25905.92904.10**

904.10**906.23905.76---
59

A
904.79898.12905.67903.99**903.99**

905.64905.52---
60

A
904.79

898.06
905.62

903.99**903.99**
905.66

905.54
---

62

A
904.85
898.18
905.82
904.05**
904.05**

906.23
905.76
---

63

A
905.09902.46905.85904.36**

904.36**905.73905.60---
53

A
905.24903.54906.20904.44**

904.44**906.41905.95---
11

A
905.15903.39906.07904.35**904.35**906.38905.91---

12

A
905.11

903.30

906.00

904.31**

904.31**

906.38

905.91

---13

A
904.98

903.36

906.09

904.18**

904.18**

906.53

906.01

---14

A
904.99

903.32

906.07

904.19**

904.19**

906.54

906.01

---15

A
904.99

903.35

906.12

904.19**

904.19**

906.54

906.06

---16

A
905.00

902.87

906.15

904.20**

904.20**

906.54

905.98

---17

A
905.00

901.55

906.18

904.20**

904.20**

906.47

905.92

---18 A
904.91901.20906.23904.11**

904.11**906.41905.79---
19

A
904.91900.58906.21904.11**904.11**906.41905.79---

20

A
904.86899.94906.09904.06**904.06**

906.30906.01---

21

A
904.90
899.55
906.02
904.10**
904.10**

906.12
905.86
---

22

A
904.96
899.24
905.97
904.16**
904.16**

906.12
905.86
---

23

D D

D D

D D

D D

D D

D D

D

D D

D D

D D

D D

D D

90
5.9

9

90
6.5

5

90
6.0

7

90
5.8

3

90
6.3

0

90
5.7

9

905
.64

905
.45

905
.44

905
.63

905.67

906.07

905.59

905.59

906.07

905.79

905.82

906.13

905.66

905.74

906.22

905.71

90
5.5

8

90
6.0

8

90
5.6

1

90
5.3

7

90
5.3

9

90
5.5

6

90
5.5

8

90
5.7

2
90

6.0
8

90
5.6

1

90
5.7

3
90

6.0
8

90
5.9

9
9 0

5 .9
8

9 0
6 .1

5
9 0

5 .6
6

90
5.7

1
90

5.9
7

90
5.7

8

90
5.5

8
90

6.1
5

90
5.8

6 905.75

90
5.8

8

905.75

90
5.6

4

90
6.3

8

90
5.5

5

90
5.5

6

90
6.2

6

905.70

905
.77

906
.32

905
.62

905.70

906.32

905.83

905.91

906.39

905.78

905.82

906.62

906.12

905.86

906.39

905.73

905.6
2

906.3
8

905.8
6

905
.76

906
.23

905
.74

90
5.9

9

90
6.2

6

90
5.8

0

90
5.9

3

90
6.3

9

90
6.1

3

90
6.1

2
90

6.2
0

90
5.7

0 905.83

905.59

905.70

905.51

905.66

A

B

C

EX HYD

HYD

POND HWL= 904.85

EASEMENT

S 90.31 **
ST 90.71 **

FG 93.91
RG 93.91

93.31

12

93.23

W 20mm

LTF 91.48

92.95 92.87

HN 247

A

93
.63

93
.63

L

L-14
14

GRADE AT REAR PL

WATER SERVICE SIZE
(SERVICE SIZE 20mm IF NOT SHOWN)
LOT TYPE
LOWEST TOP OF FOOTING

SANITARY INV 5.0m INSIDE PL
GROUND WATER DRAIN TO STREET REQ'D
(STORM INV 5.0m INSIDE PL)

** REQUIRED TO BE INSULATED
SUGGESTED FRONT GRADE
SUGGESTED REAR GRADE
HOUSE NUMBER
LOT NUMBER

INDICATES A BEARING CERTIFICATE
IS REQUIRED

D

NOTE:
ALL ELEVATIONS ARE METRIC
GEODETIC UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

D - DRIVEWAY
SINGLE

SERVICE
CL OF LOT IF
NOT STATED

DUAL SERVICE
LOCATION

GRADE AT FRONT PL

OG 90.00
GW 85.00GROUND WATER BEFORE GRADING

EXISTING ELEVATION CENTER OF LOT

1. ALL SANITARY SERVICES TO BE 100mm WHITE PVC UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED (TYP.).
2. ALL STORM SERVICES TO BE 37mm BLACK POLY.
3. ALL WATER SERVICES ARE TO BE PEX AND THE SIZE NOTED ON THE PLAN.
4. LOTS ON FILL - BASED ON FULL BASEMENTS.
5. ALL SINGLE SERVICES ARE TO BE LOCATED AT THE CENTER OF THE LOT, UNLESS SHOWN

OTHERWISE.
6. IF ACTUAL TOP OF FOOTING IS HIGHER THAN OG THEN A BEARING CERTIFICATE WILL BE

REQUIRED.
7. ALL SERVICES WITH LESS THAN 2.10m OF COVER ARE TO BE INSULATED ACCORDING TO

CITY OF LETHBRIDGE DETAIL S-19 (SEE DWG C503)

NOTES

TRAPPED LOWS
A B C

SPILL ELEVATION 905.628 905.559 906.045

DEPTH 0.128 0.133 0.024

VOLUME 21.520 35.220 0.050

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
24

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

07
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

BUILDING GRADE PLAN
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C107 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-06

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

D

D D

D

Catchbasins
in front of
driveways are
not good as
the driveway
is under water
in flooding
events.

Can creative
grading
elminate this
trapped low?
It's very small.
IMH 02/08/2023

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023

See Trent Purvis' comments re:
LTF vs front yard elev in his
02/08 email.
IMH 02/08/2023



11

10

4

3

5

12

4

3

13

8

9

7

11

6

6

5

9

10

24 25

25

50

6461
MR

54M
R 19

19

65PUL

66
MR

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

62
63

53

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

34.02m @ 1.00%

76.43m @
 0.60%

58.12m @ 1.53% 48.23m @ 0.60%

49.92m @ 1.31%

EVC905.57

EVC

905.67

BVC905.61

LP905.50

BVC905.61

HP905.70

BVC905.48

LP905.43

EVC
906.10

BVC
905.96

HP
906.12

EVC
905.76

52.74m @ 1.65%

32
.38

m 
@

 0
.60

%

30
.07

m 
@

 0
.65

%
BV

C
90

5.2
9

EVC
905.63

BVC
906.01

HP 90
6.1

9
EV

C
90

6.1
7

906.00

906.25

906.00

906
.00

905
.75

905.75

906.25

906.25

906.00

905.75

90
5.5

0

90
5.7

5

906.00

905.75
906.00

90
5.5

0

905.75

906.00

906.00

905.75

906.25

906.00

905.50

905.75

905.50

906.50

906
.00

9 0
5 .7

5

A

B

C

CR
ES

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

9 STREET N
HI

GH
W

AY
 5 

(H
IG

HW
AY

 A
VE

NU
E 

N)

TRAPPED LOWS
A B C

SPILL ELEVATION 905.628 905.559 906.045

DEPTH 0.128 0.133 0.024

VOLUME 21.520 35.220 0.050

DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARY

1. THE TRAPPED LOW EXTENTS SHOWN REFLECT THE PONDING AT THE SPILL ELEVATION.
2. ALL MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE TO BE INSTALLED  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TOWN OF

PICTURE BUTTE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS, LATEST EDITION. ANY CONSIDERED
ALTERNATIVES TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE PRIOR
TO INSTALLATION.

DIRECTION OF OVERLAND FLOW

FINISHED GROUND CONTOURS (0.50m INTERVAL)

TRAP LOW

CENTRELINE OF ROAD c/w GRADE AND ELEV0.80%
37.121 37.397

937.00

NOTES

LEGEND

ROUND TOP CATCH BASIN

SINGLE CATCH BASIN

PROPOSED EXISTING

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
27

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

08
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

OVERLAND DRAINAGE
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C108 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-06

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



13

10

10

11

27

12

4

7

19

17

3

5

14

10

18

13

28

15

12

20

26

4

1

816

3

13

12

23

8

9

2

7

11

6

6

14

24

21

22

9

25

5

11

R31

16
U

R31

68

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

24

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

64

65PUL

66
MR

C

C

51

52

55

56

57

58

59

60

62 63

53

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

EX ST MH A

EX ST MH B

EX ST MH C

LSCB 1

LSCB 6

LSCB 5

LSCB 3LSCB 2

LSCB 7

LSCB 4

EX ST 300

EX ST 375

EX ST 37 5

EX
 S

T 1
00

EX ST 100 EX ST 100

EX
 S

T 
10

0
EX

 S
T 

10
0

EX ST 100

EX ST 100

ST MH D

CB D-1

ST MH A

ST MH B

CB C-2

CB C-1

CB B-2

CB B-1

ST
 37

5 P
VC

ST 375 PVC

ST
375 PV C

#1
0.42ha

#2
0.56ha

#3
0.17ha

#4
1.04ha

#5
0.54ha

#EX 2
0.32ha

#EX 1
1.19ha

#EX 3
0.94ha

HI
GH

W
AY

 25
 (H

IG
HW

AY
 A

VE
NU

E 
N)

CR
ES

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

PIRON PLACE.

9 STREET N

9 ST N

SU
NSE

T P
LA

CE

GIBB
ONS

 AV
E

Storm Sewer Design

Fr
om To

Lo
ca

tio
n

an
d/

or
Ar

ea
 N

o.

Le
ng

th

In
cr

em
en

t
al

 h
ec

ta
re

s

To
ta

l
He

ct
ar

es

Re
le

as
e

Ra
te

(L
/s

/h
a)

Al
lo

w
ab

le
Q

   
 (L

/s
)

IC
D

Co
nt

ro
lle

d
Q

 (L
/s

)

De
sig

n 
Q

(L
/s

)

Pi
pe

Di
am

et
er

(m
m

)

Sl
op

e
(%

)

Ca
pa

ci
ty

Fl
ow

in
g

Fu
ll

(L
/s

)

Ve
lo

ci
ty

(m
/s

)

Pi
pe

M
at

er
ia

l

Ro
ug

hn
es

s
Co

ef
fic

ie
nt

A EX C #1 52.59 0.42 0.42 70 29.40 29.4 375 0.33 123.8 1.12 PVC 0.011

EX B EX C EX 1 107.97 1.19 1.19 70 83.30 83.3 375 0.50 152.4 1.38 PVC 0.011
EX C LSCB 1 #4 59.51 0.00 1.61 70 112.70 112.7 375 0.15 83.5 0.76 PVC 0.011

A B #2 58.50 0.00 0.00 70 0.00 58.7 300 1.00 118.9 1.68 PVC 0.011

D B #2 49.35 0.00 0.00 70 0.00 117.4 375 0.33 123.8 1.12 PVC 0.011

B LSCB5 #4 59.73 0.56 0.56 70 39.20 118.4 375 0.15 83.5 0.76 PVC 0.011

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
29

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c1

09
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
PLAN

 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C109 ----

1:750

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-06

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Pipe Cap < Des. Q
IMH 02/08/2023

Unlikely it was
built this way.
IMH 02/08/2023

Are the green lines
catchments?
If so, identify and show
the catchment area (in Ha.)
This needs to agree with
the stormwater mgmt report
IMH 02/08/2023

How does this
backyard flow
make its way to
the storm pond?
I note MPE did not
include any
backyard swale
either.  Has this
been agreed to
with the Town?  If
such an
agreement exists,
this catchment
shouldn't be
shown.
IMH 02/08/2023

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



12

13

9 10

24

25

50

64

61
MR

54
MR

199 STREET N

P.
P .

P.
P .

P.
P .

P.
P .

P.
P .T

C

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

51 52

55

56

57

58

59 60

62

63

53

11 12
13

14

15

23

10.4018.00

R8.80

R8
.80

R103.51

R100.00

R89.24

R99.63

R76.54

R87.26

R113.41

R103.02

9.00
16.59

R33.75

R11.25 R1
0. 0

0

C203

C202

TOWN OF PICTURE BUTTE
WATER TREATMENT BUILDING

902

903

904

905

906

907

908

909

901

902

903

904

905

906

907

908

909

1+000 1+100 1+200 1+300 1+320

LOG=1.31%

LOG=1.00%
LOG=0.60%

LOG=0.60%
LOG=1.53%

BV
C:

 1+
05

4.5
63

BV
C:

 90
5.6

11

EV
C:

 1+
08

4.5
63

EV
C:

 90
5.5

65PVI STA:1+069.56
PVI ELEV:905.42

K:12.99
LVC:30.00

BV
C:

 1+
15

0.0
17

BV
C:

 90
5.4

77

EV
C:

 1+
21

0.0
17

EV
C:

 90
5.7

57PVI STA:1+180.02
PVI ELEV:905.30

K:28.11
LVC:60.00

BV
C:

 1+
08

8.5
85

BV
C:

 90
5.6

05

EV
C:

 1+
11

8.5
85

EV
C:

 90
5.6

65PVI STA:1+103.59
PVI ELEV:905.76

K:18.75
LVC:30.00

BV
C:

 1+
22

3.1
33

BV
C:

 90
5.9

58

EV
C:

 1+
25

3.1
33

EV
C:

 90
6.0

98PVI STA:1+238.13
PVI ELEV:906.19

K:14.06
LVC:30.00

ST
A 

1+
12

5.0
0

RI
M 

EL
 90

5.7
3

S 
M

H 
1

ST
A 

1+
23

1.6
4

RI
M 

EL
 90

6.1
7

S 
M

H 
2

S 200 PVC
120.00 @ 0.50%

S 200 PVC
106.64 @ 0.50%

ST 375 PVC
DES Q=29.400L/s CAP=124L/s VEL=1.12m/s

ST 375 PVC
DES Q=117.400L/s CAP=124L/s VEL=1.12m/s

L=52.59 L=49.35 S=0.33%S=0.33% S=0.50%L=58.51 ST 375 PVC
DES Q=58.700L/s CAP=119L/s VEL=1.68m/s

ST
A 

1+
22

9.1
5

RI
M 

EL
 90

6.1
0

ST
 M

H 
D

ST
A 

1+
17

8.9
5

RI
M 

EL
 90

5.5
1

ST
 M

H 
B

ST
A 

1+
11

8.6
7

RI
M 

EL
 90

5.7
2

ST
 M

H 
A

ST
 N

E 
IN

V 
90

4.1
6

ST
 S

W
 IN

V 
90

4.1
6

ST
 N

 IN
V 

90
3.8

6
ST

 E
 IN

V 
90

3.7
8

ST
 S

 IN
V 

90
3.8

7

ST
 N

W
 IN

V 
90

4.
03

S 
NW

 IN
V 

90
3.1

1
S 

NE
 IN

V 
90

3.0
5S 
N 

IN
V 

90
3.6

7
S 

S 
IN

V 
90

3.6
4

EX
 S

 N
 IN

V 
90

4.2
8

EX
 S

T 
N 

IN
V 

90
3.9

8
EX

 S
T 

E 
IN

V 
90

3.8
0

ST
A 

??
?

RI
M 

EL
 90

5.7
0

EX
 S

T 
M

H 
CST

A 
1+

00
5.0

0
RI

M 
EL

 90
6.3

4

EX
 S

 M
H 

3

S INV 904.27
ST INV 903.98

W 150 PVC
W 150 PVC

W 150 PVC

F1

IN
V 

90
2.4

1
ST

A 
1+

18
2.2

4

EX
 F

2

IN
V 

90
2.8

76
ST

A 
1+

03
5.5

4

EX W 150

EXISTING GROUND

ROTATED SECTION

SAN PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+005.98

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+067.58

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+117.78

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+119.56

SAN PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+124.12

SAN PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+125.90

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+178.05

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+179.85

SAN PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+196.80

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=1+228.26

CONNECT TO EXISTING W 150

PIPE INSULATION
SEE DETAIL S-19
ON DWG C503

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU

TU CC

EX W 150 EX F2

F1
HV1

H1

W 150 PVC

W 150 PVC

EX S MH 6

EX S MH 5

EX S MH 3EX S 200

EX S 200

EX S 200

EX ST 375

EX
 S

T 3
75

E X ST 375

EX ST MH C

S MH 3

S MH 2

S MH 1

S 200 PVC

S 200 PVC

S 200 PVC

S 200 PVC

ST 375 PVC

ST
 37

5 P
VC

ST 375 P VC

ST MH D

ST MH B

ST MH A

18.00
11.50

9.00
6.00

16.59
8.30

CB D-1

CB B-1

CB B-2

CB C-1

CB C-2

EXISTING SERVICE
TO BE REMOVED

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
32

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c2

01
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

9 STREET PLAN AND PROFILE
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C201 ----

H 1:500 V 1:50

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-06

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



10

3

12

13

11

6461
MR

TU
TU

TU

TU

TU
TU

TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU

TU TU

TU

TU

TU

TU
TU

TU

TU
TU

TU TU
TU

TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

TU
TU

P.P
.

P.P
.

P.P
.

P
C

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO
PO

PO

59

60

62
63

10
.40

9.00

9.00
16.54

9.00
20.51

10
.40

18
.00

16.59

PROPOSED LANE ACCESS

2.00m SIDEWALK

POST AND CABLE FENCE
c/w PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

POST AND CABLE FENCE
c/w PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

TIE TO EXISTING
ROAD

C2
03

C201

CC
CC

C

EX
 S

 20
0

S MH 2

S MH 3 S MH 4

S 200 PVC

S 
20

0 P
VC

S 200 PVC

ST MH D

ST MH B

ST
 37

5 P
VC

ST 375 PVC

W 150 PVC

F1
HV1

H1

2.00

16.59
8.30

1.0
0

1.0
0

2.00

9.51
12.01

8.30
16.54

CB D-1

CB B-2

CB B-1

F2

F3 V1

5.30

W 150 PVC

W
 15

0 
PV

C

11.30

EX
 1

50
 (R

AW
 W

AT
ER

)

EX
 W

 15
0

902

903

904

905

906

907

908

909

901

902

903

904

905

906

907

908

909

2+0002+1002+130

LOG=0.65%

LOG=1.65%

LOG=0.60%

BV
C:

 2+
02

0.0
72

BV
C:

 90
5.2

88

EV
C:

 2+
05

0.0
72

EV
C:

 90
5.6

34

PVI STA:2+035.07
PVI ELEV:905.39

K:29.93
LVC:30.00

BV
C:

 2+
07

2.8
09

BV
C:

 90
6.0

09

EV
C:

 2+
10

2.8
09

EV
C:

 90
6.1

67
PVI STA:2+087.81
PVI ELEV:906.26

K:13.32
LVC:30.00

ST
A 

2+
12

0.1
9

RI
M 

EL
 90

6.1
7

S 
M

H 
2

S 200 PVC
33.80 @ 0.50%

ST
A 

2+
08

6.3
9

RI
M 

EL
 90

6.1
5

S 
M

H 
3

S 200 PVC58.37 @ 1.92%

ST
A 

2+
02

8.0
2

RI
M 

EL
 90

5.4
2

S 
M

H 
4

S 
NW

 IN
V 

90
3.1

1
S 

NE
 IN

V 
90

3.0
5

ST
 N

W
 IN

V 
90

4.
03

S 
SE

 IN
V 

90
2.8

2
S 

SW
 IN

V 
90

2.8
8

S 
NW

 IN
V 

90
1.7

0

ST
A 

2+
11

7.7
0

RI
M 

EL
 90

6.1
0

ST
 M

H 
D

EXISTING GROUND

ROTATED SECTIONROTATED SECTION

TIE TO EXISTING ROAD
STA 2+005.00
ELEV 905.19

F2

IN
V 

90
2.9

3
ST

A 
2+

12
3.1

7

F3

IN
V 

90
3.0

0
ST

A 
2+

08
3.3

9 V1

IN
V 

90
2.1

2
ST

A 
2+

02
6.4

7

W 150 PVC

W 150 PVC

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
35

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c2

02
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

CRESCENT AVENUE
REALIGNMENT PLAN AND

PROFILE 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C202 ----

H 1:500 V 1:50

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-07

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023



61MR

19

19

65PUL

TU

TU

TU

P.P.

PO
PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

59

60
62

63

20
21

22

18.00
10.40

9 S
TR

EE
T N

C2
01

TU

TU

TU

S
20

0
PV

C
S

20
0

P
VC

ST MH B

CB B-2
CB B-1

ST 375 PVC

ST
37

5
PV

C
S T

3 7
5

P V
C

W
15

0
PV

C
W

15
0

PV
C

F1
HV1H1

18.00
11.50
9.00
6.00

903

904

905

906

907

902

903

904

905

906

907

3+000 3+080

ST
A 

3+
01

1.5
0

RI
M 

EL
 90

5.5
1

ST
 M

H 
B

ST 375 PVC
DES Q=118.400L/s CAP=84L/s VEL=0.76m/s

L=59.73 S=0.15%

ST
 N

 IN
V 

90
3.8

6
ST

 E
 IN

V 
90

3.7
8

ST
 S

 IN
V 

90
3.8

7S 
20

0 P
VC

IN
V 

90
3.3

7
ST

A 
3+

00
9.0

0

W
 15

0 
PV

C
IN

V 
90

2.3
3

ST
A 

3+
00

6.0
0

9 STREET
18.00 R/W 61 MR

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

EXISTING GROUND

TOP OF FINISHED
SURFACE

PIPE INSULATION
SEE DETAIL S-19
ON DWG C503

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=3+012.38

STM PIPE INSULATION
STA=3+060.93

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
37

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c2

03
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

POND CONNECTION PLAN AND
PROFILE

 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C203 ----

1:500

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-06

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:



C

LOG
905.84

LOG
906.05

LOG
906.15

LOG
906.13

0.65%
1.5

1%

LOG 1.53%

S MH 2
RIM 906.17

ST MH D
RIM 906.10

LOG (VC) 0.18%

LOG (VC) 0.15%

9 STREET

CR
E S

CE
NT

 A
VE

NU
E

0.
65

%
0 .

76
%

0.75%

1.1
8%

LOG
905.97

LOG
906.03

LOG
906.22

LOG
906.16

LOG
906.18

LOG
905.99

LOG 1.65%

LOG 1.65%

LO
G 

(V
C)

 0.
57

%

S MH 3
RIM 906.15 CRESCENT AVENUE

P.P
.

LOG 1.45%

LOG 1.46%

LO
G 

0.6
5%

LOG
905.24

LOG
905.50

LOG
905.51

LOG
905.46

LOG
905.28

TIE TO OG
905.19

TIE TO OG
905.19

1.6
6%

0.72%

0 .72%

0.
65

%

S MH 4
RIM 905.42CRESCENT AVENUE

CORNER
A

CORNER
B

CORNER
C

CORNER A - DETAIL
1:150

CORNER B - DETAIL
1:150

CORNER C - DETAIL
1:150

KEY PLAN
1:1000

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
40

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c5

01
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

INTERSECTION AND BULB
DETAILS

 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C501 ----

1:150

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-07

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Ensure
Northing arrow
isn't obscured
by linework

IMH 02/08/2023

Weird curve
IMH 02/08/2023



TRAN

0.25

1.70

CA
BL

E
TE

LU
S

EL
EC

W
AT

ER

SA
NI

TA
RY

ST
OR

M

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

5.00

0.50

9.00

0.25

1.70

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

6.50

0.30

C.
S.C.
S.

10.40

GA
SL

IN
E

4.30 3.50

3.50

SU
BD

RA
IN

1.801.80

CE
NT

RE
 LI

NE
 O

F R
OA

DW
AY

NOTES:
 SEE DEPTH ZONES OF SERVICES. HYDRANT, TRANSFORMERS AND STREET LIGHTS

ARE CENTRED ON LOT LINE EXTENSIONS.
 TRANSFORMERS & PEDESTALS 0.15m BACK OF SIDEWALK.
 WIRE FOR ELECTRICITY/TELUS/SHAW AND GAS CABLE 1.50m BACK FROM

PROPERTY LINE.
 SHALLOW UTILITY EASEMENT 3.5m FOR 4 PARTY TRENCHING (RESIDENTIAL)

CA
BL

E
TE

LU
S

EL
EC

GA
SL

IN
E

TRAN

2.00
1.50 MONOWALK

HY
D 

LE
AD

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION - 9 STREET
1:100

18.00

0.30

3.50
FRONT LOT EASEMENT

(3.00 SIDEYARD)

3.50
FRONT LOT EASEMENT

(3.00 SIDEYARD)

SU
BD

RA
IN

TRAN

0.25

1.70

CA
BL

E
TE

LU
S

EL
EC

W
AT

ER

SA
NI

TA
RY

ST
OR

M

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

5.30

0.50

8.30

0.25

1.70

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

5.80

0.30

C.
S.C.
S.

9.00

GA
SL

IN
E

4.30 3.50

3.50

SU
BD

RA
IN

1.801.80

CE
NT

RE
 LI

NE
 O

F R
OA

DW
AY

NOTES:
 SEE DEPTH ZONES OF SERVICES. HYDRANT, TRANSFORMERS AND STREET LIGHTS

ARE CENTRED ON LOT LINE EXTENSIONS.
 TRANSFORMERS & PEDESTALS 0.15m BACK OF SIDEWALK.
 WIRE FOR ELECTRICITY/TELUS/SHAW AND GAS CABLE 1.50m BACK FROM

PROPERTY LINE.
 SHALLOW UTILITY EASEMENT 3.5m FOR 4 PARTY TRENCHING (RESIDENTIAL)

CA
BL

E
TE

LU
S

EL
EC

GA
SL

IN
E

TRAN

2.00
1.50 MONOWALK

HY
D 

LE
AD

TYPICAL ROAD SECTION - CRESCENT AVENUE
1:100

16.60

0.30

3.50
FRONT LOT EASEMENT

(3.00 SIDEYARD)

3.50
FRONT LOT EASEMENT

(3.00 SIDEYARD)

SU
BD

RA
IN

STREET

37
mm

 S
TM

10
0m

m 
SA

N
25

mm
 P

EX

LC CL

10
0m

m 
SA

N
37

mm
 S

TM

25
mm

 P
EX

LO
T 

LIN
E

STREET

CL

10
0m

m 
SA

N
37

mm
 S

TM

25
mm

 P
EX

LO
T 

LIN
E

LO
T 

LIN
E

3.5
0 U

R/
W

0.3
0

3.2
0

0.20

0.20
EXTEND ALL SERVICES 0.3m
BACK OF UR/W

3.2
0

3.5
0 U

R/
W

0.3
0

1.00 1.00

0.20
0.20

0.20
0.20

DUAL LOT SERVICE
N.T.S.

CCCC
CC

SINGLE LOT SERVICE
N.T.S.

ASPHALT PAVEMENT STRUCTURE
N.T.S. AS PER GEOTECHNICAL REPORT PREPARED

BY BDT ENGINEERING JANUARY 2023

100mm BASE GRANULAR MATERIAL

SUBGRADE PREPARATION

100mm SUB-BASE GRANULAR MATERIAL

75mm TYPE 3 ASPHALT c/w PRIME COAT

1.00

1.00

1.05

150x150 TREATED WOODEN POSTS TYP.
(SEE CITY STANDARD DETAIL 4.4.2)

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

CHAIN FENCE c/w
REFLECTORS IN THE
MIDDLE (TYP)

1.19

1.00

1.00

2.00
W

ALK W
AY

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS

NOTE:
FOR COMPLETE INSTALLATION
INSTRUCTIONS, SEE CITY STANDARD
DETAILS 4.4.1

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS GATE
1:100

1
C102

PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
42

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c5

02
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

SECTIONS AND DETAILS
 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C502 ----

AS SHOWN

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-07

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:

Hydrant
Lead to a 
transformer?
IMH
02/08/2023

What about
streetlights? 
What line
assignment
are they on?
IMH
02/08/2023

What about
streetlights? 
What line
assignment
are they on?
IMH
02/08/2023



PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
44

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c5

03
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

STANDARD DETAILS SHEET 1
OF 2

 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C503 ----

N.T.S.

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-02

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:



PL
OT

TE
D:

 2
02

3-
02

-0
7 -

 3:
45

 P
M

FI
LE

: l:
\pr

oje
cts

\to
wn

 of
 pi

ctu
re

 b
utt

e\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
 su

ns
et

 pa
rk 

ph
as

e 2
\5 

tec
hn

ica
l\0

3 
dw

g\
22

1-
13

50
7-

00
-c5

04
.dw

g
CT

B:
 w

sp
-c3

d-
bla

ck
-fu

ll.c
tb

221-13507-00  

STANDARD DETAILS SHEET 2
OF 2

 
 
 

SUNSET PARK PHASE 2

C504 ----

N.T.S.

 

 

 

 

 

2023-02-03

CIVIL
0A 202X-MM-DD ISSUED FOR <DESCRIPTION> --

WSP Canada Inc.
3509 6th AVENUE NORTH, LETHBRIDGE, ALBERTA  T1J 5C1

T 403-327-7746 | www.wsp.com

PROJECT:

REV.

PROJECT NUMBER: CLIENT REF. #:DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV BY

REVISION:

DRAWING NUMBER:DISCLAIMER: COPYRIGHT:
THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS COPYRIGHT PROTECTED WHICH SHALL NOT BE USED, REPRODUCED OR
REVISED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION BY WSP. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY ALL
DIMENSIONS AND UTILITY LOCATIONS AND REPORT ALL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING
WORK.

SEAL:

IF THIS BAR IS NOT
25mm LONG, ADJUST

YOUR PLOTTING SCALE.

DATE:

DISCIPLINE:

ORIGINAL SCALE:

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

CHECKED  BY:

25mm

TITLE:CLIENT:

F

F F F

AN
SI

 D
-H

 V
ER

SI
ON

 1.
1

DESIGNED BY:

MODIFIED BY:



 
Memorandum 

 

 
Date: 7 February, 2023 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Re:  Council attendance at Alberta Coordinated Action for Recycling Enterprises Conference 
 
 
Background: 
At a Lethbridge Regional Waste Management Commission meeting the following motion was made: 
“MOVED by J. Kuerbis to compensate one member of each of the represented commission municipalities 
to attend the CARE Conference in Strathmore in February.” 
 
The motion was vague and understood to mean that the commission would pay for all costs associated 
with attending the conference. However, the Commission will only pay for the registration cost for the 
conference. The municipality will have to cover other costs including hotel, mileage and renumeration for 
time. 
 
Councillor Thomson expressed a desire to attend the conference at the time the motion was made at the 
commission meeting. If this is to occur Council needs to pass a motion stating that they will pay for 
expenses incurred while attending the “CARE” conference as per the Town’s expense reimbursement 
policy. 
 
 
Submitted by: Keith Davis, CAO  

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

   



Travel Lodge by Wyndham
350 Ridge Road, Strathmore, AB

Please forward registrations & payment to:
 C.A.R.E.ALBERTA

Linda McDonald, Executive Director
5212-49 Street
Leduc,   T9E 7H5AB
Cell:780-668-6767
Email: executivedirector@ care.orgalberta
Web: www. care.orgalberta

February 22nd-February 24th

12th Annual
Alberta CARE

Spring Seminar

Accommodations

February 22nd-February 24th

12th Annual
Alberta CARE

Spring Seminar

Silent Auction
Going once...
Going twice...
Ends February 2 /223

 at 8:00 p.m.

Who Should Attend?
Municipal Elected Officials

Waste Commission Managers

Landfill Operators

Public Works Employees

Eco Centre Employees

Alberta Recycling Associations

Alberta Landfill Engineers

Waste Management Vendors

Waste Disposal Companies

School Boards, Education Facilitators

Anyone interested in Reusing, Reducing,

Recycling and Recovery

                                                                                               
  

                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                       

Town Office

Geodesic Community Dome

The Vault Cultural Collective



Printed on 100% Post-Consumer Recycled PaperPrinted on 100% Post-Consumer Recycled Paper

Monday February 22nd -
Tuesday, February 23rd

Thursday, 
February 25th

Printed on 100% Post-Consumer Recycled Paper

Friday, 
February 26th                                                                                      

ALBERTA Coordinated Action for 
Recycling Enterprises (CARE)

1-780-980-8089 Phone

Tuesday
February 21st

Thursday, 
February 23rd

Friday, 
February 2 th4

:30 a.m. - 4: 0 p.m.  Updated HHW Course9 3
Register separately with executivedirector@albertacare.org

9:00 a.m.- 5:00 p.m.   Registration and Exhibit Set Up

11:00 a.m. - Noon      Lunch and Refreshments

1:00 p.m.                         TOUR #1   
                                          
                                    Drumheller Regional Solid Waste Landfill
                                   
                                    OR

                                         TOUR #2   
                                          
                                   Royal Tyrrell Museum
                                         

5:00 p.m.                      COCKTAILS (Cash Bar)

6:30 p.m.                     BUFFET BANQUET

8:00 p.m.                    Entertainment

7:00 a.m.          Exhibit Viewing & Buffet Breakfast

8:15 a.m.          Welcome – Tom Moore, Chairman, Alberta CARE

8:30 a.m.          Town of Strathmore, Overview of Environmental 
                         Sustainable Development

9:15 a.m           Geodesic Community Dome
                         Strathmore Highschool, Mr. Colehintz and Students

10:00 a.m.        Southern Alberta Energy from Waste Association
                         (SAEWA)
                         Paul Ryan, SAEWA Board Member

10:45 a.m.        Grain Bag and Twine Recycling
                         Dan Zembal, Poly Ag Recycling & 
                         Davin Johnson, Clean Farms

11:30 a.m.        Regional Intro to Plastic Recycling 1 - 7 and  
                         Mixed Post Consumer Plastic
                                                            Mark Sabourin, EFS Plastic Recycling  
                                                                                                                   
 NOON              BUFFET LUNCHEON

1:15 p.m.               TOUR #3

                          Quantum Lifecycle – Info Technology 
                          Assets Disposition (ITAD)
                         Rocky View  County Irricana Transfer Station
                         City of Airdrie, Self Serve Transfer Station 
                         and Recycling Depot

                          OR

                              TOUR #4

                          Military Museum – 2nd Largest in Canada

5:00 p.m.          COCKTAILS

6:30 p.m.          BUFFET BANQUET 

8:00 p.m.          Silent Auction Ends
                                                            
9:00 p.m.          HOSPITALITY EVENING - Hosted by K&K Recycling
                                                                                                                                        

7:00 a.m.       Exhibit Viewing & Hot Buffet Breakfast

8:30 a.m.       AI Technology for the Waste Stream
                      Glen Finstad, Councillor, City of Leduc, AB

     9:00 a.m.  Alberta Plastics Recycling Association (APRA)
                      Update
                      Tammy Schwass, Executive Director    

9:30 a.m.       Extended Producers Responsibility (EPR) 
                      Municipal Update
                      Ed Gugenheimer, Alberta Recycling Management
                      Association (ARMA) 
                      David McKenna, Director, Waste Policy Section,
                      Alberta Environment and Protected Areas

10:15 a.m.     Plastic Bumpers – Automotive Recyclers 
                      of Canada (ARC)
                      Steve Fletcher, Environment Canada and 
                      Climate Change            

1 :  a.m.     Closing Remarks1 00
                      Tom Moore, Chairman, Alberta CARE

 

                                            

(Buses loading at 1:00 p.m.

(Coffee Side Bar)

(Buses provided for Tours)

(Coffee Side Bar)

(Buses provided)

Wednesday
February 22nd

This Conference is Alberta Enviroment approved 
for `Continuing Education Units`

10% Discount!

Running with the Bulls

Capital Power

Solar Farm



 
CAO Report 

 

 
 
Date:   9 February, 2023 
To: Mayor, Council 
From: CAO 
 
Staffing 
We have filled the PW 1 full time position with Jeremy Sillito and have a casual public works person 
working with us while the Water and Wastewater Operator position remains vacant. At the moment 
staffing levels have returned to normal with the exception that we are using public works staff and 
Coaldale staff to fill vacancies in the arena schedule to cover for the casual individual that moved to 
Calgary.  
 
Miscellaneous Items 

• I have been spending time on reorganising our electronic filing system. 
• I met with the seniors regarding their rental agreement. Discussions went well. They want to take 

the proposed rental fee back to their members with their recommendation to accept the rental fee 
and yearly 3% increase.  

• I attended a Picture Butte interagency meeting with FCSS representatives. FCSS are putting 
together another bulletin for events occurring in the Spring.  

 
Ongoing projects 
Sanitary Main Upgrade – Phase 2  
There are a few deficiencies that need completing with this project. We are working with the engineers to 
have them completed.  
 
Wastewater Approval Requirements 
The completed application is with Alberta Environment. A grant application is with Alberta 
Transportation. We now have to wait for the Provincial bodies to notify us of next steps. 
 
 
 
HOLIDAY STATUS 
Days in lieu used 2 hrs out of 70 hrs   Accrued Holidays  22 days 
 
 
Submitted by: 
Keith Davis, CAO 

Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in 
                         Lethbridge County 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency 

   



 

Town of Picture Butte 
Our Vision:      Picture Butte is the Community of Choice to work, live and play in Lethbridge County. 
Our Mission:   Picture Butte is a thriving community dedicated to serving our people   
                         through fiscal responsibility and transparency. 

  

Director of Operations Monthly Report 
January 23 – February 7, 2023 

 

 
Town of Picture Butte 
Monthly Report – January 23 – February 7, 2023 
Submitted by: Aaron Benson Page 1 of 1 

 

Current Public Works Activity 

 
 Sunset Phase II: Open house to the public on the preliminary design was held on January 25, 2023. 
 Work with a local nursery on obtaining different species of trees through a free tree trial provided by 

the Provincial Government. 
o Use the small trees to plant at specific locations around the Town. 

 Hired one full-time Public Works 1 position. – Start date on February 6, 2023. 
 Hired one casual Public Works 1 position. – Start date on January 30, 2023. 
 Training for permanent staff with WHMIS and Ground Protection is in progress. 
 Worked with Alberta Transportation to install new pedestrian crossing pushbuttons on Rogers 

Avenue beside the Picture Butte Highschool. 
 Discussions with Alberta Transportation on fixing the highway drainage on Rogers Avenue are in 

progress. 
 Snow Maintenance: Staff continues to snow plow and apply sanding during the snow events.  
 Metering is completed for January 2023. 

o The new software and belt clip will be fully operational in May, 2023. 
 Obtained quotes for an online safety program are completed. 
 Garbage continues to be done weekly. 
 North County Recreation Complex – Arena: The last tournament for minor hockey was completed 

from February 4 thru the 5th. 
 Clean-up in the shop continues and is in progress. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council receive for information, the Director of Operations report for the period of January 23, 
2023 – February 7, 2023.  

Prepared by: Aaron Benson Date: February 7, 2023 
Respectfully presented to:             Council Date: February 14, 2023 

 



1

Keith Davis

From: Exec. Assistant on behalf of Dan Rude <EA_DRude@abmunis.ca>

Sent: Wednesday, February 01, 2023 8:55 AM

To: Keith Davis

Subject: Asset Management Workshops

Good Morning, 

 

I just wanted to remind you of the opportunity to register yourself and council members for our Asset Management 

Workshops for Elected Officials.  ABmunis, in partnership with RMA and Infrastructure Asset Management Alberta, is 

able to offer these workshops at no cost other than your travel and accommodations thanks to a grant received from 

the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM). The workshops are aimed at CAOs and elected officials to provide an 

understanding of how asset management can support your municipality. 

 

For participants in southern Alberta, workshops are scheduled in Lethbridge on February 16th and Calgary on March 2nd. 

If interested, please sign up for these dates as soon as possible as they are quickly approaching. For the rest of the 

province, workshops are scheduled in Grande Prairie on April 20th, in Edmonton on May 25th and in Vermilion on June 

8th. For more information and to register please visit our asset management page: https://www.abmunis.ca/advocacy-

resources/infrastructure/asset-management/asset-management-courses/elected-officials-asset 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

  

 

     

 

  

  

  

 

  



��������������������
����������������

������
�	
�
�
��������
�
���
�

�

�������������������������������������

w w w . f c s s . c a

INVITATION
The Board  o f  Barons-Eureka-Warner  Fami ly  and  
Communi ty  Suppor t  Serv ices  inv i tes  your  Counc i l 

members  to  the  

All-Councils Meeting
Date:   Apri l  5 ,  2023
Registrat ion:  5:30 to 6:00pm
Dinner:   6:00 pm
Locat ion:   Civic Square

  1801 20 th  Ave .  #200,  Coa lda le

P lease  RSVP by  March  24 ,  2023  v ia  ema i l  t o  
L i nda .Hash i zume@fcss . ca  f o r  t hose  a t t end ing .

















1

Keith Davis

From: Community Engagement <Community.Engagement@albertahealthservices.ca>

Sent: Thursday, February 02, 2023 1:56 PM

To: Community Engagement

Subject: EMS/811 Shared Response

 
  

EMS/811 Shared Response 

  

Dear Stakeholders  

  

Alberta Health and Alberta Health Services announced today a new EMS/811 

Shared Response that is already is helping patients get the care they need and 

reducing unnecessary ambulance responses.  

  

This new collaboration between EMS and Health Link 811 allows for the transfer of 

EMS callers who EMS assesses as low-acuity – or, not experiencing a medical 

emergency that requires an ambulance - to Health Link 811 nurses for further 

triage, assessment and care. If at any point it is determined an ambulance is 

required, one will be dispatched. 

  

Many EMS callers are seeking help, advice or guidance and don’t know where to 

turn so they call 911 even though they do not need an EMS response. Evidence to-

date also demonstrates that some callers looking for ambulance transport have 

needs that are better met outside the emergency department. Some callers, for 

example, call 911 when they are experiencing sleeplessness, constipation or 

earaches.  

  

Allowing these callers to be connected with Health Link 811’s Registered Nurses will 

provide better support for patients while allowing ambulances to remain in the 

community to respond to life-threatening emergencies. This results in faster 

emergency response times and better flow through the health system: two of AHS’ 

four key priorities. 

  

In the first two weeks of Shared Response, approximately 6 per cent of EMS calls 

have been transferred to 811. In consultation with other jurisdictions in Canada 

that have also implemented similar call triaging, up to 20 per cent of EMS calls are 

transferred to a nursing line, over time. If AHS realizes a 20 per cent call transfer 

rate as the work continues between EMS and 811, EMS could be freed up from 

responding to approximately 40,000 low acuity calls each year. 



2

  

Both EMS Emergency Communications Officers and Health Link’s RNs use industry 

best practice protocol and advice models to assess patients and their care needs. 

This ensures consistency and safe, patient-focused clinical options. 

  

In addition to Shared Response, AHS is also issuing a Request for Expressions of 

Interest and Qualification (RFEOIQ) for transporting patients who do not require 

emergency care, between care facilities.  

  

By contracting third party partners to transport patients requiring care, between 

care facilities, patients receive the supports they need, while EMS ambulances are 

freed up to respond to emergencies.   

  

These actions are all a part of AHS’ four priorities: 

• Improving EMS response times. 

• Decreasing emergency department wait times. 

• Reducing wait times for surgeries. 

• Improving patient flow throughout the healthcare system. 

  

AHS is taking action on all four priorities. Specific to AHS EMS, we are also adding 

new resources and aggressively working to recruit and retain EMS staff. We have 

stopped the automatic dispatch of ambulances to non-injury collisions and are fast-

tracking ambulance transfers at emergency departments by moving less urgent 

patients to hospital waiting areas. In addition, paramedics are now able to assess, 

treat and refer patients if they do not require transport to hospital, and new 

guidelines are getting patients who do end up in the hospital, home faster after 

discharge. 

  

Visit ahs.ca/ems to learn more about the work that AHS is doing to ensure 

sustainable high-quality emergency medical services are available for all Albertans. 

  

We are making fast, effective improvements that are focused on improving patient 

flow – from the moment a call is made to EMS, to the arrival of an ambulance and 

the subsequent care of a patient in the emergency department and broader health 

care environment.  

  

These extraordinary efforts are all part of a collective, organization-wide effort to 

build a high-quality health care system.  And we could not do that without the help 

of our valuable community partners. 

 

Thank you for your contribution to building healthy Albertans, healthy 

communities, together.  

 

Sincerely, 

  

Mauro Chies 

Interim AHS President and CEO 

  

 
 

 



3

 

 

  

 

 

This message and any attached documents are only for the use of the intended recipient(s), are confidential and may 

contain privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, retransmission, or other disclosure is strictly prohibited. If 

you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately, and then delete the original message. 

Thank you.  







 

 
 

Southern Alberta Energy from Waste Association 
www.saewa.ca 

 
 

MEDIA RELEASE 

Energy from Waste Project Heats Up 

January 30, 2023 

The Southern Alberta Energy from Waste Association – SAEWA is pleased to announce 

publicly that after a long and rigorous Expression-of-Interest and Evaluation Process – 

that the SAEWA Board on January 27, 2023 did approve the Steering Committee’s 

recommendation of an Energy-from-Waste Partner, identified as HITACHI ZOSEN INOVA - 

HZI with a view to establishing a formal project development agreement for 

implementation of SAEWA’s vision for an energy from waste facility in Southern Alberta.  

 

Statement from the SAEWA Chair, Tom Grant -  

“As Chair of SAEWA, I am extremely proud of the progress made and to have received the 

Boards Motion in approval to establish a formal partnership agreement with HZI. “The 

process has been long but rewarding to the Board and our members to finally get here”. 

  

Statement from the SAEWA Vice Chair/Project Lead, Paul Ryan –  

“It has taken a long time to get to where we are today, and we could not have done it without the full 

support of the SAEWA Board of Directors and the Steering Committee. I look forward to leading the 

Project with the Steering Committee to the next level and establishing a formal partnership 

agreement with HZI.” 

 

Statement from HITACHI ZOSEN INOVA – HZI 

“HZI is delighted to have been selected by SAEWA to deliver a cost effective world-class 

Energy from Waste facility for the communities, businesses and municipalities of Southern 

Alberta” said Stuart Mander, Director of Project Development at HZI. 

“When operational the new plant will be equipped with HZI technologies such as HZI’s 

own reciprocating grate and our state-of-the art boiler whilst ultimately being designed to 

fully comply with the most stringent emission limit requirements to satisfy the high 

demands placed on modern Energy from Waste facilities” 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SAEWA’s primary goals for development of an energy from waste facility are:  

• To reduce southern Alberta’s long-term reliance on landfill disposal; 

• To process non-recyclable solid waste from SAEWA communities and potentially private sector   

customers; 

• To reduce greenhouse gas emissions from solid waste management; and, 

• produce electricity, heat energy and potentially additional by-products for commercial sale. 

 
 
For additional information contact:  
Vice Chair & Project Lead, Paul Ryan 403-609-7465 
Administration - Sherry Poole: 403-563-5759 
HDR Project Manager – Michelle Blake (michelle.blake@hdrinc.com )                       604.365.5037 
 
  

mailto:michelle.blake@hdrinc.com


 

 
 
PO Box 460, 56 Wheatland Avenue 
Smoky Lake AB  T0A 3C0 
PH: 780-656-3674 | FX: 780-656-3675 
smokylake.ca | town@smokylake.ca 

 
 
 
 
February 6, 2023 
 
 
 
Nadja Lacroix 
Senior Manager, 
Inspections Gaming 
Nadja.lacroix@aglc.ca 
 
Re: Letter of Support: Appeal of Denied Application to Relocate  

Camrose Casino to South Edmonton 
 
Dear Nadja: 
 
On behalf of the Not-for-Profit community groups and the residents of the Town of 
Smoky Lake, please accept this letter in support of the owners of the Camrose casino 
appeal of the AGLCs decision to deny the request to relocate the casino from 
Camrose to South Edmonton. 
 
The decision to deny the relocation, we are informed, may result in the closure of the 
casino. This will have a significant negative impact on our community groups and, by 
extension the people within our region. The casino has long been a significant source of 
funding for the groups in our rural area.  
 
In the current economy, parents specifically rely on an equitable charitable gaming 
model to help serve the under-served (the rural people within the Province of Alberta). 
Those same parents are the eager volunteers who take advantage of every 
opportunity they are given to “work at a casino event” to raise much needed funds for 
their organization. 
 
I’m given to understand that should the Camrose casino close, our groups will have far 
fewer fundraising opportunities and will have to travel greater distances to fill the 
funding gap. 
 
 
 
 

…/2 
 
 
 

mailto:Nadja.lacroix@aglc.ca


Letter of Support: Appeal of Denied Application to Relocate Camrose Casino to South Edmonton 
(Page 2) 
 
 
Again, in the pursuit of equality of opportunity that would have Rural Albertans 
presented with the same funding opportunities as our urban counterparts, we ask that 
you consider the appeal by the Camrose Casino owners and allow the relocation. This 
will ensure the survival and growth of the current rural charitable gaming region. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
TOWN OF SMOKY LAKE 
Per 
 
 
 
Amy Cherniwchan 
Mayor 
Town of Smoky Lake 
 
AC/bt 
 
Cc: 
Glenn van Dijken, MLA – Athabasca.Barrhead.Westlock@assembly.ab.ca 
Brian Jean, Minister of Jobs, Economy & Northern Development – 
jend.minister@gov.ab.ca 
Travis Toews, President of Treasury Board & Minister of Finance – tbf.minister@gov.ab.ca 
Nicole Marshall, Director of Alcohol, Gaming & Cannabis – Nicole.marshall@gov.ab.ca 
Kandice Machado, AGLC CEO – kandice.machado@aglc.ca 
Len Rhodes, AGLC Board Chair – len.rhodes@aglc.ca 
Wyatt Skabron, Manager of Policy & Advocacy, RMA – wyatt@rmaalberta.com 

mailto:Athabasca.Barrhead.Westlock@assembly.ab.ca
mailto:jend.minister@gov.ab.ca
mailto:tbf.minister@gov.ab.ca
mailto:Nicole.marshall@gov.ab.ca
mailto:kandice.machado@aglc.ca
mailto:len.rhodes@aglc.ca
mailto:wyatt@rmaalberta.com

	2023 02 13 Agenda
	3.1 2023 01 23 Minutes
	5.2 Q3 Signed Community Letter
	5.2a Picture Butte Provincial
	5.2a Picture Butte Provincial_Page_1
	5.2a Picture Butte Provincial_Page_2
	5.2a Picture Butte Provincial_Page_3
	5.2a Picture Butte Provincial_Page_4
	5.2a Picture Butte Provincial_Page_5

	5.2b Picture Butte Provincial Q3 2022 Five Year Crime Stats
	5.2c Alberta RCMP OCC Program
	A. Who we are….
	B. What we do….
	C. How it happens….
	D. How you can help….
	E. What’s next….
	F. How will NG9-1-1 changes impact me….
	G. To find out more….

	5.2d NG911 Infographic
	6.1 RFD - Bylaw No. 932-23 Land Use Bylaw Amendment
	6.1a Bylaw 932-23 - Reading page- Rezone 643 Cres Ave
	6.1b 643 Crescent Avenue Application - Land Use Redesignation
	6.1c Sunnysouth ad
	6.2 RFD - Federal grant funding
	6.2a GICB-Applicant-Guide-BCVI-Guide-du-demandeur-EN
	6.3 Picture Butte Centennial
	6.3a 1943_Incorporation of Village
	6.3b Order in Council Changed to Town of Picture Butte
	6.4 Memo COW Meeting time
	6.5 RFD Sunset Park Phase 2 design
	6.5a OpenHouseSummary
	6.5b Sunset Park Phase 2 Drawings For Review
	6.6 RFD CARE Conference Attendance
	6.6a Care Conference
	9.1 13 February - CAO report
	9.1.1 DOO Report
	10.1 Asset management
	10.2 All Councils Invitation 2023
	11.1 2022-12 BEW FCSS Board minutes
	11.2 Ambulance Services Town of Fox Creek
	11.3 AHS - 811
	11.4 Letter to Minister Nixion Re Piyami Lodge
	11.5 SAEWA EFW PROJECT HEATS UP - MEDIA RELEASE 2023.01.30
	11.6 Letter of support - Camrose Casino Appeal to AGLC



